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Name
Registered Head Office
Operation Headquarters

Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

258 Aoluk-Laemsak Road, Aoluk, Krabi 81110 Thailand

HQ Offices and Siam Factory: 258 Aoluk-Laemsak Road, Aoluk, Krabi 81110
Tel: 075-634-634, Facsimile: 075-681-124

Plai Phraya Branch:

TOPI Factory: 592 Aoluk-Pasaeng Road, Plaipaya, Krabi 81160

Tel: 075-652-066-8, Facsimile: 075-652-067

Lamthap Branch:

Lamthap Factory: 142 Moo 1 Tambol Toongsaitong, Lamthap District, Krabi 81120
Tel: 086-470-2729, Facsimile: 086-470-2730

Cha-Uat Branch:

Cha-Uat Nursery: 173/2 Tambol Thapaja, Cha-Uat, Nakhon Sri Thammarat 80180
Tel: 075-380-754, Facsimile: 075-380-754 Ext.100

Direct and Indirect Subsidiaries

Company

Univanich Agribusiness
Corporation

Univanich Carmen Palm
Oil Corporation

Web Site

E-mail address
Registered No.
Type of Business

Registered Capital
Registered Paid-up Capital
Par Value per Share

Other References
Share Registrar

Auditor

Provident Fund

Investor Relations
Name
Mr John Clendon

Country Business % Ownership interest  Paid-up capital
Philippines  Investment Holding 99.99 9,000,000 Pesos
Philippines  Palm Oil Mill 51.00(Indirect) 246,000,000 Pesos

www.univanich.com

info@univanich.com

0107543000066

Oil palm plantations and crushing mills, oil palm research and seed production.

The company’s main products comprise crude palm oil (CPO), crude palm kernel oil
(CPKO), palm kernel cake (PKC), hybrid oil palm seeds and seedlings, electricity,
and carbon credits (CERS)

940,000,000 common shares

Baht 470 million

Baht 0.50

Thailand Securities Depository Company Limited

62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building, 7th Floor, Rachadapisek Road,
Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110

Tel: 0-2229-2800 Facsimile: 0-2359-1262-3

Mr Chaisiri Ruangritchai, Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)

No0.4526 of PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited, 15th Floor,

Bangkok City Tower, 179/74-80 South Sathorn Road, Bangkok 10120

Tel: 0-2344-1000, 0-2286-9999 Facsimile: 0-2286-0500, 0-2286-0600

AIA Munkhong Registered Provident Fund

E-malil
john.clendon@univanich.com

Position
Managing Director

Telephone
075 634 634 Ext 111
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Introduction by Board of Directors

Univanich enjoys a reputation for conducting its business with integrity and with respect for the interests
of those people and environments our activities can affect. This reputation is an asset, just as real as our people,
factories and brand.

Our first priority is to be a profitable business and that means investing for growth and balancing short term
and long term business interests. It also means caring about our customers, employees, shareholders, suppliers, and
the communities and environments in which we conduct our operations.

In the course of meeting our business objectives, we consider it essential that all employees understand and
comply with our values and therefore share the Univanich way of doing things.

Itis very easy in the realm of the business ethics to make high sounding statements of little practical value. The
general principles contained in this Code are the bedrock; more detailed guidance tailored to the needs of different
countries and companies will be further developed.

This Code of Business Principles is a core Univanich statement and we commend it to you.

B

Apirag Vanich
Chairman

N /

Standard of Conduct
Univanich will conduct its business with honesty and integrity and with respect for the interests of those with whom
it has relationships.

Obeying the Law
Univanich will comply with the laws and regulations of the countries in which we operate.

Employees
Univanich will recruit, employ and promote employees on the sole basis of the qualifications and abilities needed for the
work to be performed. Univanich is committed to providing safe and healthy working conditions for all its employees.

Univanich believes it is essential to maintain good communications with employees, through transparent information
and consultation procedures.

Conflicts of Interest

Univanich expects its employees to avoid personal activities and financial interests which could conflict with their
commitments to their jobs.

/ Univanich
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Public Activities
Univanich neither supports political parties nor contributes to the funds of groups whose activities are calculated to
promote party interests.

Univanich companies are encouraged to promote and defend their legitimate business interests. In so doing they may
either directly, or through bodies such as trade associations, raise questions and discuss particular government actions
or decisions.

Univanich will respond to requests from governments and other agencies for information, observations or opinions on
issues relevant to business and the community in which operate.

Product Assurance
Univanich is committed to providing products which consistently offer value in terms of price and quality. Where
possible this will be supported by ISO certification.

Environmental Issues

Univanich is committed to running its business in an environmentally sound and sustainable manner. Our aim is to ensure
that our processes and products have the minimum adverse environmental impact commensurate with the legitimate
needs of the business. Where possible this will be supported by appropriate certification of environmental sustainability.

Competition
Univanich believes in vigorous yet fair competition and supports the development of appropriate competition laws.
Employees receive guidance to ensure that they understand such laws and do not transgress them.

Reliability of Financial Reporting
Univanich accounting records and supporting documents must accurately describe and reflect the nature of the underlying
transactions. No undisclosed or unrecorded account, fund or asset will be established or maintained.

Bribery
Univanich does not give or receive bribes in order to retain or bestow business or financial advantages. Univanich
employees are directed that any demand for or offer of such bribe must be immediately rejected.

Application
This Code applies to Univanich activities throughout the world. Where Univanich companies participate in joint ventures
the application of these principles will be actively promoted.

Compliance

It is the responsibility of Univanich managers to ensure that the principles embodied in this Code are communicated
to, understood and observed by all employees. Independent Internal Auditors will support the Board in monitoring
compliance with the Code.

The Board of Univanich will not criticize management for any loss of business resulting from adherence to these
principles. Equally, the Board of Univanich undertakes that no employee will suffer as a consequence of bringing to
their attention or that of senior management, a breach or suspected breach of these principles.

In this Code the expressions “Univanich’ and “Univanich companies™ are used for convenience and mean the Univanich
Group of companies comprising Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited and its subsidiary companies. The Board
of Univanich means the Directors of Univanich Palm Qil PCL.

Univanich
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited was established on 26th December 1995 as an amalgamation of
three of Thailand’s pioneer palm oil companies. The three companies were Thai Oil Palm Industry and Estate Company
Limited, Siam Palm Oil and Refinery Industry Company Limited, and Hup Huat Palm Oil Industry Company Limited.
The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand on 25th November 2003 under the abbreviation UVAN.

Univanich is one of Thailand’s leading producers of crude palm oil (“CPQ) and crude palm kernel oil (“PKQO”).
Palm oils are important ingredients in the manufacture of cooking oils and salad oils, margarines and shortening, snack
foods, ice creams, soaps, shampoos and cosmetics. Biodiesel and biofuels are rapidly expanding new uses of palm oil.
A byproduct from the production of PKO is palm kernel cake (“PKC”) which is used in animal feeds.

The main features of the Company’s business are as follows:

« Univanich operates oil palm plantations in Krabi, Surat Thani, and Nakhon Si Thammarat Provinces of
Southern Thailand, with a planted area in 2015 of 35,991 rai (5,758.6 hectares) including 2,224 rai (355.9
hectares) immature area. The first plantations were established in 1969 and replanting of a new generation
of palms commenced in 1992. The Company has now achieved a balanced age profile of palms with
approximately 4% of the area routinely replanted each year.

o In 2015, the Company’s own plantations produced 10.9% of the fresh fruit bunches (“FFB”) processed by
the Companies factories, with 89.1% of FFB being purchased from outgrower farmers. The overall planted
area of oil palms in Thailand is expanding rapidly and it is this expansion of small-holder plantings that is
fueling the Company’s long-term growth.

« Univanich has three palm oil crushing mills and two palm kernel crushing plants, all located in Krabi Province.
In 2015, Univanich factories processed 641,072 tonnes of FFB and 34,026 tonnes of palm kernels (PK).
Each crushing mill operates methane capture systems to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and to generate
renewable electricity for sale to the Provincial Electricity Authority grid.

« Univanich operates a palm oil exporting facility at the deep-water port of Laemphong in Krabi Province. In
2015, by volume, 10.5% of the Company’s sales of palm oils were exported to markets in Asia.

o Univanich operates an Oil Palm Research Centre (OPRC) which is a leader in oil palm research in Thailand. The
Company’s advanced palm breeding programme produces high yielding hybrid seeds for
our own replanting programme and for sale to oil palm farmers, both locally and overseas. In
2006, Univanich OPRC commissioned Thailand’s first laboratory for oil palm tissue culture. This
project is to produce high yielding clonal palms in support of the Company’s oil palm breeding programme.

o In 2013, Univanich expanded its business to the Philippines by establishing a 51% owned joint venture
company named Univanich Carmen Palm Oil Corporation (UCPOC). UCPOC has constructed a new palm
oil crushing mill in North Cotabato province of Mindanao. The new palm oil mill started processing in July 2014.

o InThailand, Univanich employs 1,092 people and is professionally managed to an international standard
established during 15 years of joint venture with Unilever PLC. From 1983 to 1998, when Unilever held a
51% shareholding in Univanich, the business was managed through Unilever’s International Plantations and
Plant Science Group, based in Cambridge, UK.
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

§1U2M9aM513Y (@11u1n) Financial Status (Baht, million

Funswdn Total assets 3,171 3,440 3,568 3,858 3,810
gﬂwﬁ’miﬁT (Eqﬁ/l%) Total accounts receivable, net 114 360 341 67 113
iau 9193 Lmzqﬂﬂitﬁ (gn3) Property, plant & equipment, net 1,152 1,137 1,238 1,349 1,426
ﬂﬁﬁui)u Total liabilities 418 358 383 524 525
@V 0e{usIN Total shareholders’ equity 2,753 3,082 3,185 3,334 3,285

AUV éﬁaﬁu-u‘%ﬁﬂw@ Total equity attributable to the owners of the parent 2,753 3,082 3,157 3,282 3,214

walszneums (@1uun) Operating Performance (Baht, mi

seldnnnsne Sales 7,749 6,376 5,710 5,701 3,988
7181#573 Total revenues 7,775 6,519 5,763 5,848 4,038
719919370 Total expenses 6,213 5,394 4,927 5,088 3,612
ﬁﬂiﬂ?uﬁu Gross profit margin 1,759 1,216 1,021 863 619
ilsrouneniivseuazmibRuld Earnings before interest expense and income tax 1,562 1,124 836 762 436
milRuldlidynna Corporate income tax 280 138 105 129 66
mlsgnsan Net profit 1,282 987 732 631 360

ﬁﬂiqmﬁd’mﬁtﬂummﬁﬁﬂmﬂ Net profit attributable to owner of the parent 1,282 987 733 636 374

9M31dIUN191519Y Financial Ratios

mls (mm/ﬁu) Earnings (Baht/Share) 1.36 1.05 078 0.68 0.40
YssmesigRuiluwa (L) Dividend Declared (Baht/Share) 095 070 0.55 0.50 0.40*
yammatgy¥deru (UIm/Au) Book Value (Baht/Share) 293 328 336 349 342
mlsqnisudesuldsin Net Profit margin (%) 1649 1514 1270 10.78 892
9MNdIUANINAABA Current ratio (Times) 6.44 840 9.11 10.83 10.36
gandInanIMAGeINYUIEI Quick ratio (Times) 505 7.14 813 971 9.26
é’@mwama‘uLmumn?rum%’wﬂ'imm?{a (%) Return On Assets (ROA) (%) 46.66 29.85 20.88 1699 9.40
é’mmamummiadmmm@ﬁaﬁum‘a"a (%) Return on shareholders’ equity (ROE) (%) 52.37 33.82 2349 19.77 11.52
Sanduniidudediuvearideru (W) Debt to Equity Ratio (Times) 015 012 012 016 0.16

wingma  * W3Ea Idhesuiusaszniemaldudrnndanuaz 0.17 um lufeunuiou 2558 uazazdeduiluna
nagamhednludanifuaz 0.23 vm lwdeungqumeay 2559 dazdesldsueyliAaniniszauddeuluiun
27 ey 2559

* Tumsissaganiydforumniandait 44 sl 2556 fualhdouuamamifuniayanyadifuas 5.00

vmeterfu Wuyadivfuas 0.50 vmeerfu ldsuRumTyRRAIn@Y 94 Afu T 940 Snfu
Note : * Interim dividends totalling Baht 0.17 per share have been paid in September 2015, with a final dividend of
Baht 0.23 per share proposed to be paid in May 2016, subject to shareholder approval on April 27th, 2016.

* At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 44 in year 2013, the Shareholders approved to split the
Company’s par value from Baht 5.00 per share on 94,000,000 shares to be Baht 0.50 per share on 940,000,000
shares.

O
o
(Q\|
[_.
v
O
(AW
(1]
v
—]
<
J
Z
z
<
ac
O
7a
<
>
z
3

—
-_—

Univanich




il .

" QU

ARERIEREY)

-

a

T L)
SaRuaimlsdiTnssd

Tuthw.a1. 2558 aaudnyasmlananmasgszaumgamiouluiiiinan amhinhduf liidesnudunarli
warlsznoums hiduazvanuannsnenuvesdisznoumsnuanann

| A Ay = a & 4 a v =

aglsian ginisldifiulszloniveansamuiivannanednasiniislunmsaawanssnuusnessnmausunyasi

ana walszneumsiiavesgsnatimhewdanufihdnhiumazmsimhenssualiihiidunemivayusasenglduili
ginannniamamulssnuaiaiiuhduazauhduningu

vsmaulsdnuesnmausinyasuazanmglenmeliuseddmidmivgintsuaznldGouindeulumsiams
fugsnaveas mangsnenvanvasuaziugaiuinsaiimdinmsoasuedudsitipaiomadulanaluswaauas
weldRuilunalsznnadmivinamungodaduoam

aanfuinadgunldesineliudlunsnulsshiliimaniedeiwmluGesdulmusiuGosnily nszuumsdoeg
dudmuau@osniy e 10,849 15 (1,735 wauns) NGEuawAIun 1 nsngaw 2553 sudiulddsanuad luiun 7
ey 2556 158N 1 2 ldaumilesderallnasesuasaisssunwilunTasnuasdomsumileadnvaisad lumenaa

Tusznail 2558 13maldiusmilosdematnaseaiiovelinalnasesiinsaniiaus oy 209 wlasditefszna
9,021 lusuderniy mdimldmanseuasosoiisigndosmungrneindoulasroauauvesyiinaldaeiiaumd
fhinnndwesiidusuduraenesiuiuuasld
f1ssTomidoidiosdailagiiunounssnatiaydga
ﬂizmaﬂqwmﬂﬁﬁu W.f. 2497(1954)a¢
dszmaldifany wazneudsemadiuvathasu
@il WA, 2526 (1983) 1384 1aGuman
unMInseuAseuiigndndemalnaseasie
Thenalnasesiimdlimsnuiinerdeseen
nmsansiaudnan iU gmne

Palm Oil Produced by Univanich
wananuiuanveagiiniiy

(Thousand tonnes)

matlnasasldmasumilosaansime
Miwennsarudinazluszninenieglunis
f930v03Ma NINdduuasuITea ey

UNIVANICH ANNUAL REPORT 2015

yuunganaduauifvesusymauazysma

Hansnazldsslenivazniloansndaduvaay
Simaldaungrang

winzldsuamsmungmne lussniad
w.et. 2558 18induiyngniidaoudongmine
whyngnuazdnasuuluedanathanlasvaviniu
ypumslumasiuiineluaumhdnhifues
gty madlugieszningl 2558 waihdw
diiuldgnanaeudaiisznn 40,000 fu uaz
TasmaTeilddmumnnvmeiiigumoia
taldsunnudememuiuiieannndudynin
fishaseuasosituiivaundliBusenlintinagu
audivothdunhifmesyinivldhhhigesnm
uaziiudoyaluu/amansad o

Excluding Philippines

Univanich



P / Ll 3 =iy o

& #

i

In 2015, global commodity prices fell to the lowest level seen in
recent years. Palm oil prices were no exception leading to depressed results
and losses reported by many producers.

However, in Univanich we saw once again the benefits of diversification
to reduce the impact of commodity price cycles. A good contribution from
our seeds business and from electricity sales partly compensated for a difficult

year for our crushing mills and oil palm plantations.

Commodity cycles and weather calamities are nothing new for
Univanich and we have learnt to manage our business accordingly. With a

well diversified business and a strong balance sheet we can continue to invest

for future growth whilst still maintaining a fair annual dividend for our loyal investors.

A concern which we explained in some detail in last year’s Annual Report has been the on-going dispute over
the Chean Vanich land concession. The renewal process on 10,849 rai (1,735 hectares) commenced on 1st July 2010.
In view of slow progress, on 7th March 2013 the company filed the first of several legal petitions to the Administrative

Court in Nakhon Sri Thammarat.

During 2015, the company filed further petitions with the Administrative Court seeking the Court’s ruling on
209 blocks of land totaling 9,021 rai in Chean Vanich Estate. These surveyed blocks had been legally occupied or
purchased by the company’s predecessors before the implementation of Land Laws in year 2497 (1954) and before the
declaration of Forest Reserve in that area in year 2526 (1983). The company has petitioned the Administrative Court
with clear evidence of this prior surveyed occupation, seeking the Court’s ruling that the company should be issued title

documents in accordance with the law.

The Administrative Court has accepted the company’s petitions for consideration and judgement. During this
consideration the company’s existing investments and research trials on that land remain the property of the company
which is entitled to normal use and protection of those Profit Contribution in 2015
assets, according to the law. (Pre-tax profit Baht 474.6 million)

Despite this legal position, during 2015 illegal
encroachment and organized fruit theft became well
established criminal activities in several Univanich
plantations. We estimate that approximately 40,000 tonnes
of palm fruit was stolen during 2015 and many years of
valuable research were lost when staff of the Univanich Oil
Palm Research Centre were prevented from maintaining
and recording trials in those mob-occupied areas.*

Excluding Philippines

/ Univanich
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Faced with these challenges our company’s policy has been to rely on the justice of the courts and the protection
of law enforcement authorities. This faith in the justice system was rewarded on 25th February 2016 when a combined
force of local administration, police, military, forestry officers and others dispersed the illegal occupiers, arrested mob
leaders and enabled the company to begin a rehabilitation of those invaded plantations.

More positive developments during 2015 included the completion of land acquisition for our new nursery and
factory site in Phatthalung Province. Following extensive community consultations and public briefings Univanich
received the necessary permissions and licenses to construct a new crushing mill in Phatthalung in 2016. Site preparation
is now under-way and this Baht 400 million construction will be completed in 2016 — 2017.

In Philippines, our subsidiary Univanich Carmen Palm Oil Corporation is steadily increasing its production
as more local small holder farmers convert their farms to oil palms. This is a slow but steady process and we remain
confident that oil palms will transform small-farmer agriculture in Southern Philippines, just as it has brought prosperity
to Southern Thailand.

I would like to take this opportunity to congratulate our management teams in Thailand and Philippines for their
success in guiding our business through a challenging year. We remain very confident about our growth strategy and
in our ability to implement that strategy.

I would also like to thank our many stakeholders for their loyal support during 2015 and for their continuing
interest in the development of our business and our communities.

G/

Apirag Vanich
Chairman

* Major research activities currently in place or planned by the Univanich Oil Palm Research Centre include:
Oil Palm breeding and progeny trials

Oil palm nurseries for advanced planting material

Oil palm tissue culture trials for the next generation of clonal oil palms and bi-clonal seeds

High density and two-tier planting trials

Advanced oil palm fertigation and irrigation trials

Integrated livestock development under oil palms

Biomass recycling and composting trials for the development of organic fertilizer supplements.

No ok~ wDdE
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The Audit Committee of Univanich Palm Oil PCL was established by resolution of the Board of Directors on
29 July 2003. In 2015, the committee comprised the following Independent Directors:

Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati : Chairman of Audit Committee
Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra : Member of Audit Committee
Mr. Chong Toh : Member of Audit Committee

On 18 March, 2015, M R Chatu Mongol Sonakul retired as an Independent Director and member of the Audit
Committee after 6 years of valuable service to the company. We are pleased to report that his position as Independent
Director and member of the Audit Committee was accepted by Mr Chong Toh who also brings valuable commercial
and financial experience to the Committee’s work.

Details of the scope of duties of the Audit Committee, as defined by the Board of Directors, can be found in
the Company’s Annual Report.

During 2015, the Committee once again engaged the audit firm of KPMG Phoomchai Business Advisory Ltd
(KPMG) to carry out a further internal audit review to ensure that effective controls were being operated. Their review
included trial sampling, examining supporting evidence, observation and interviewing. The internal audit function
has focused on various activities and operations including a review of the following processes: Procurement Process,
Payment Process, Inventory Management, Estates Management, Sales Operations. KPMG will complete the internal
audit review in the first quarter of 2016.

During 2015, the Audit Committee held four meetings. The Committee also reviewed the Quarterly Financial
Statements prepared by the external auditor, and recommended these to the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Annual Consolidated Financial Statements for 2015 together with
the company’s management and with the external auditor. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the Annual
Consolidated Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Univanich Palm Oil
Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2015 and 2014, including the results of the company’s operations and its
cash flows for those years, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the management of the company has performed its duties in accordance
with all laws and regulations to which the company must comply. The Committee is also of the opinion that all related
party transactions have been conducted within the guidelines established to avoid any conflict of interest, and that the
published code of good corporate governance has been applied.

The Audit Committee has proposed that the Board of Directors consider the appointment of Mr. Chaisiri

Ruangritchai, of PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited, to be the company’s statutory auditor for 2016. This

nomination will be proposed to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for confirmation.

O ==

Suchad Chiaranussati
Chairman of Audit Committee

/ Univanich
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Monthly FFB Purchases (OFP) 2015
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Table 1: Univanich Soil Moisture Deficit (2011 - 2015) (mm)
mm

Year Jan Feb  Mar Apr  May Jun Jul  Aug Sep Oct Nov  Dec Total

2011 5 23 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 28
2012 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 4
2013 2 75 73 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 151
2014 37 146 55 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 242
2015 3 35 129 5 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 173

The dry conditions in 2013 depressed production two years later in the first half of 2015. In addition the extreme
dry conditions in first quarter of 2015, with 167 mm of soil moisture deficit, led to lower fruit production during the
year

Production of fresh fruit bunches (FFB) from our own estates was 18.4% lower than the previous year. Although
we regained permission to use the former Chen Vanich estate concession area in June 2014, fruit yield from that area was
very low due to delayed maintenance and ongoing problems of organized fruit theft and mob occupation in both Chean
Vanich and Topi estates. The replanting of Klong Thom estate during the year also contributed to the lower volume of
estate FFB.

Estate Monthly FFB Production 2015

nananihduanaIuLsIN 2558

Tonnes
Q)
AU

FFB purchased from outside growers was 571,678 tonnes, was almost the same as 570,328 tonnes of last year.
Many fruit bunches were aborted as a result of the dry weather in the first quarter, resulting in lower fruit production
during the year. Competition from new factories increased. FFB purchases of 212,493 tonnes at the Lamthap factory
was 20.2% higher than the previous year due to increased fruit purchases from the Nakorn Sri Thammarat area.

CPO production of 110,706 tonnes was similar to the 111,537 tonnes last year. Average OER% increased to
17.27%, up from 17.01% in the previous year.

PKO production of 15,282 tonnes was 1.7% lower than last year, due to the lower volume of palm kernels crushed.
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Total palm oil sales volume was 27.3% lower than in 2014, due to the decrease in purchases of third party oil
for export. The effect of the Government scheme devised to support the small farmer fruit price made Thailand’s palm
oil uncompetitive against soybean oil in the domestic market and uncompetitive in export markets.

The average 2015 CPO selling price was 11.1% lower than in the previous year, due to lower global commodity
prices and high domestic CPO stocks. The average PKO selling price was 24.0% lower, due to the influence of lower
petroleum prices in the oleochemical industry

Thailand CPO Price 2014-2015

snndhasavlulszmalneg 3 2557-2558
Baht/Kg

Seed and seedling sales increased 20.3% from previous year. Seed exports decreased by 18.4%, mainly due to
the slower rate of new plantings after global palm oil prices declined. However, local sales of nursery seedlings were
34.3% higher than in the previous year due in part to government encouragement of farmers to replant rubber trees with
oil palm by paying a subsidy of Baht 26,000 per rai.

Total electricity sales to PEA increased by 11.9%, from the previous year due to a recovery of crop production in
Q3, which resulted in higher second-half of the year biogas production. However, no revenue was received in 2015 from
the sale of Certified Emission Reductions (CERs) due to the long certification process.

Total sales revenue of Baht 3.99 billion was 30.0% lower than in the previous year partly due to the above effects
of lower prices and production.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of Baht 3.369 billion was 30.4% lower than in the previous year due to the lower fruit price. The
cost of palm oil purchased from third parties to make up the volume required for export shipments was also lower due
to lower volumes and lower buying price.

Overall, gross margin for the year increased from 15.1% to 15.5% due to the decrease in low-margin oil purchases
from third parties for export, and increased higher margin seed and seedling sales.

Overseas Operations

Univanich Carmen Palm Oil Corporation sold 12,816 tonnes of CPO in 2015 and ended the year with an inventory
of 653 tonnes CPO stock. The after tax loss of PHP 37.8 million was within expectations during this first full year of
operation when capacity utilisation is still low. The loss attributed to UVAN shareholders was Baht 14.5 million and
this has been consolidated in the UVAN trading result.
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Trading Result

For the financial year ending 31st December 2015, the consolidated net profit after tax of Baht 374.32 million
(Baht 0.40 per share) was 41.18% lower than the result of Baht 636.39 million in the previous year. The main factors
affecting this result were the lower average selling price of crude palm oil (CPO), lower production of fresh fruit bunches
(FFB) from the company’s own plantations due to the continuing occupation of some company plantations by trespasser
groups, and absence of the sale of Certified Emission Reductions (CERs). The impact of these factors was partially
offset by increased sales of nursery seedlings which were 34.3% higher than in the previous year.

Capital Projects

Investment in Capital Projects during 2015 was Baht 225 million.

Plantation projects included the routine replanting of another 252.6 ha (1,579 rai) of oil palms. Since the
commencement of the replanting programme in 1992, 86.2% of the company’s plantations have been replanted with a
new generation of palms. This routine annual replacement has achieved a stable, well-balanced age profile.

The company continued to purchase land in Phatthalung Province where we purchased 53.07 rai in 2015, to give
a total area purchased at 401.3 rai. This site is currently being developed as a nursery and new factory

In 2015, the company started to build two 2,000 tonne storage tanks at Chean Vanich Jetty, Krabi province,
to provide an opportunity to expand the oil trading and export business. In addition, the company purchased 7.26 rai
adjacent to the port land. This land will accommodate the pipeline from the tank farm to the port, and space for related
facilities such as tanker parking and staff accommodation. The storage tanks are planned to be completed in June 2016.

Other capital projects included the expansion of the Cha-Uat nursery, advance deposit payment to purchase new
machines, and site preparation for our fourth palm oil mill in Phatthalung Province.

During 2015 the company continued investigations in several overseas countries seeking suitable investment
opportunities related to our palm oil business

Cash Flow and Capital Structure

Cash or cash equivalents on hand at 31 December 2015 were Baht 523.82 million, compared to Baht 697.16
million at end of 2014.

* Net cash inflow of Baht 482.52 million resulted from the net profit before tax of Baht 425.97 million,
depreciation, amortization and other non cash charges of Baht 153.46 million, tax paid of Baht 88.45 million
and an increase in working capital of Baht 8.46 million.

» Net cash payments of Baht 193.65 million for investment purposes, included net cash expenditure of Baht
240.48 million, a decreased short term cash investment of Baht 10.00 million, plus interest income of Baht
36.83 million.

* Net cash outflow of Baht 461.44 million for financing activities was mostly due to the dividend payment of
Baht 441.80 million, being Baht 0.47 per share paid during 2015, Baht 11.29 million repayment of loan from
financial institutions borrowed by our subsidiary in the Philippines, and subsidiary’s interest payment of Baht
8.35 million

The company’s capital structure at 31 December 2015 was strong with a debt to equity ratio of 0.16 times
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Development of New Site in Phatthalung
MINaNInsInsliniinga

Univanich has purchased 401.3 rai of uneconomic rubber tree plantation land in Pabon District of Phatthalung
Province. The approval by local residents was unanimous during the community liaison meeting. Univanich Engineers
are working alongside Malaysian consultants for the final mill design. Construction of the plant is expected to be
completed in the second half of 2017.
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Along with the construction of Univanich’s fourth mill in Thailand, a nursery is being established to meet the
demand of local farmers for high quality planting material.
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Record Seedling Sales to Small-Farmer Outgrowers
doagannegdunarthawiniuliunineasnsnades

Record seedling sales were achieved
from Univanich’s three nurseries in 2015 with
a 34.3% increase over the previous year, as
small-farmers expand sustainable oil palm
development in Southern Thailand.
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“Palm Oil : How It’s Made” Documentary Film at Univanich
asnd “wiuhdy : Tdanedels”

Univanich plantations and factories were used in filming “Palm Oil : How It’s Made” for the award winning
Discovery Channel documentary series. The palm oil documentary will be televised in May 2016.
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Tank Farm Development
manaaddufunduihdnensdiosn

Close to the Chean Vanich Jetty
in Krabi province, the Company began
constructing a tank farm for palm oil storage
in 2015 for completion in June 2016. This
storage facility will provide an opportunity
to expand the oil trading and export business.
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Philippines Factory Production Grows
Tsanuvasvsanlulszmaalludbuwathdusnsiuiisauu

In 2015, the first full year of operation at our joint venture Univanich Carmen Oil Corporation factory, the
volume of fruit crushed increased significantly since opening in June of 2014. The mill’s presence has given local
small farmers the confidence to plant and expand their oil palm plantings, allowing for future growth.

Tl 2558 Tmmtmﬂumuﬂmmmm%mimu mtﬂumvmawu Iddagdumadugduuy duilusn Suw
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The Company is incorporating an Inclusive Business model working with small farmers and essential input
suppliers to help Mindanao small farmers, the poorest region of the Philippines, to lift their families above the
poverty line.

‘IJTHTIG[‘Hﬂ’J’liJ‘J’JZJ‘lJE)Gluﬂ‘Ii’J'NiﬂLL‘]JUﬂ’l'iﬂ'lmuﬁ’lu‘mﬂmamﬂﬂ(ﬂiﬂ’ii'lﬂﬂﬂﬂlu‘ﬂm‘ﬂwumm’l wﬂuwu'ﬂmn%umm
Tuslailud Lwaiwmu%uiuﬂamu"lﬂwmmmum"lﬂ

UNIVANICH ANNUAL REPORT 2015

General Manager Mindanao
Y v Q'l o0 A
gaamsm il dszandiuaimn

Inearly 2016, Mr Lee Suelto was appointed General
Manager Mindanao. Lee, a native of Mindanao, gained
both an MBA and a Degree in Industrial Engineering
from Davao University, Philippines. He has more than
15 years managerial experience, with multinational and
local companies working in areas including General,
operational, and strategic management, and financial
and operational analysis, as well as human resources
administration. Lee’s role will be to manage the
Univanich Carmen Oil Pal Corporation and develop
Univanich’s business in Mindanao.
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Univanich Support for Local Communities
gUNUFIINAUVAYUENBUT DY

In 2015, the Company donated a new ambulance to the residents of Nong Talay district, Krabi province.
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Thailand’s Top Corporate Brand Values 2015
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At the 2015 Chulalongkorn University
Business School “Thailand’s Top Corporate
Brand Value Awards”, General Manager
(UVAN), Mr Howard Hill accepted the award
for the category of Agriculture.
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Thailand’s Monthly CPO Production 2014-2015
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Climatic factors have significant influence on palm oil production.

Weather patterns, such as a severe drought, can affect average oil palm yields by more than 20%. This impact
of climatic events will be experienced in the year of the drought and up to two years after the stress, when the palms

produce fewer fruit bunches.

Thailand’s annual CPO Production (tonnes)

2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
Source : Department of Internal Trade

AFTA and Trade Barriers

Under the ASEAN Free Trade Agreement (AFTA) with effect from 1st January 2010 there are no tariffs on the
trade of vegetable oils within the ASEAN region. This measure has not yet been fully implemented and palm oil imports
into Thailand are subject to some controls intended to stabilise the domestic market. If tariff or non-tariff barriers were

1,288,000
1,832,000
1,893,000
2,135,183
2,000,610
2,068,475

waramnhduaullsemelng (Fu)

2553 1,288,000

2554 1,832,000
2555 1,893,000
2556 2,135,183
2557 2,000,610
2558 2,068,475

imposed to restrict free trade in palm oil it may have a negative impact on Thailand’s oil palm industry.

Thailand’s Supply & Demand of Palm Oil in 2015

Opening Stock 1/01/2015
CPO Production in 2015
Imported crude palm oil

Imported refined palm oil

Total
Source : Department of Internal Trade

Supply
(Tonnes)
167,591
2,068,475
49,935
3,344

2,289,345

Demand

(Tonnes)
Local Consumption 1,053,329
Exported refined palm olein 68,102
Biodiesel 833,222
Ending Stock 31/12/2015 334,692
Total 2,289,345
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Palm Oil vs Other Oil Seed Crops
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Source: Oil World (2015)
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Competition from Soybean Oil, Rape Seed Oil and Sunflower Oil

The main competitor for palm oil in world markets and in Thailand’s domestic market is soybean oil. Competition
from soybean oil may increase as a result of increased plantings in South America, encouraged by growing demand for
soya meal as an animal feed and by the higher yields from genetically modified soya crops (GMOs)

However, oil palms produce an average of 4.16 tonnes oil per hectare, compared to less than 0.5 tonnes per
hectare from soybeans. For this reason palm oil’s share of world production is steadily increasing.

Palm Oil’s Share of World Production

drumiafSanannduhaulunananingunsnilan

Palm Oil Share of World Production
Million tonnes of 17 main oils & fats
wanamnsinhdu Eud) dumidlumananves 17 inituitsuaz lvdasudninlan

1980 4.6 8%

1990 11.0 14%

2000 21.9 19%

2013 56.2 30%

2015 62.8 31%

2020 forecast 78.0 estimated minimum requirement to meet consumption demand

Source: Oil World (2015)

At the present time, palm oil is the most price competitive of the main oils competing for a share of the world
market, and palm oil is easily the most efficient and environmentally sustainable of the main oil crops.

Palm Oil’s Share of World Trade
International Trade Volume of Vegetable Qils

1 1 ?,' ) d cq!’ g v A U q'l
dusyaninhanlunaradeviginiunrszrilszmanilan

Source: Oil World (2015)

World oil palm plantings occupy less than 1% of the 5 billion hectares used for agriculture today. But in
return, oil palms produce 31% of the world’s supply of edible oils and fats.
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Thailand’s Use of Crude Palm Oil for Biodiesel

Hanamslihdmhdutumeaniswan luleamaluilszma

Thousand Tonnes
128 WUAY

UNIVANICH ANNUAL REPORT 2015

Source: Internal Trade Department
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World Demand Growth

World demand growth for edible oils and fats will depend on world population growth, world economic growth
and price trends which will fluctuate according to supply and demand.

The world’s annual production of the 17 main edible oils and fats has grown from 80.7 million tonnes in 1990
to 204.9 million tonnes in 2015.

Growth in world production of main Oils & Fats
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1990 : 80.7 mil tonnes 2015 : 204.9 mil tonnes

Source: MPOB (2015)

Since year 2000, world consumption of vegetable oils grew at a compound annual growth rate of 5.2%. During
this period consumption of palm oil increased at an average annual rate of 8.1% to become the world’s leading source
of vegetable oil.

One factor driving this consumption increase has been the strong economic growth in large developing countries
such as India and China. With the economies of India and China continuing to experience slower growth this has reduced
the rate of growth in the world’s demand for vegetable oils.

Biofuels Demand Growth

Vegetable oils are increasingly consumed as biofuels and for the manufacture of biodiesel. Over the past 11
years the world consumption of biodiesel has increased from around 4.0 million tonnes in 2004 to 28.8 million tonnes
in 2015 of which 8.7 million tonnes came from palm oil.

Biodiesel is seen to reduce the effect of fossil fuel on world climate change and oil palm cultivation has been
a very successful crop for the alleviation of rural poverty in some of the world’s underdeveloped regions. For these
reasons, and for reasons of energy security, some countries including Thailand, have legislated to mandate the use of
biodiesel in diesel blends. This mandated use means that future consumption growth of biodiesel may not depend on
price alone, and that vegetable oil prices are now linked to petroleum prices.

LO)
o
(Q\|
[_.
04
O
(W
m
v
—]
<
J
Z
z
<
ac
O
7a
<
>
z
3




U &l a A Ad' AQ' Eg 1
ANNABINITFINAITINNNNVY (D)

danudesnsvesdrialulofma vhldnanhduisegluszaungunull o1veziisguavndszmasni@nnisls

U N A a a N é o 04 = o V!
nguaetanumslFluledwa viesnidniduganyunisidluledma denduamailimsldlulefiwaanasuazyirlii
Fnanhduiisduivluaaalanuasnmnanmasdmdudignihduigiu

Tl 2558 wandnvoniuhduiwu 8.7 dwau dgnldlumswaaluledma viefailu 14% veaSummsly
uuhdumanue SnndldindululedwainnuiileiGesdnnzmadeunisstuvesmssdminiuhdulueudou 019
mlvianvdeamslsintiululefmanniniuihdvanas luszring 2533 - 2553 dmslauthlulansvou 300 Srueauns

& v A R ' A A4 A N A PR ~ ¢
waziflumsldimenstgnihduinguiios 3% (hinwiungulasuanisduunlgnihdminiu) @n: ssdmsermsuaz
mimymumﬁwﬂi"%wm) LmaﬂN"linmnmiﬂanﬂmnumuﬂwﬂuﬂi mumaa“lummauclmm Suiisuaesueseasng
Wannenruiiodunadouraeeadng smunminiuauiaamassauatslansil 2557 ondaraliiinmsanlsiniuiaiie
msnanluTedaanadhidlaell vhldnanhiuhdumasihiuisaamasdas

a g a a T v s [l & A a o Y [ | Y a T o
gimimihmninvesmnaumsndauninhduegndsdu (RSPO) uazFimldsulususesvaamsiugudauiy
AN v A d‘ v § o Y a 90’ o 1 Q'/ IS o v Y a é’ 1 o v a v
Wity varimsldindduiusoimafudrdmhinhdueduibuhidumumandagau uddulomadmiuuiim
agnginiyilduaaslifiuiamsaszminuazldlalumsquasnudanaden wsugiamasdinuedaadumeuu

=

onsuanilasy

€
D

mahganamuneiuhasssnihaizmasgevneduduasaasansyenisnm fidhuazddioenlulszmalnens
wldsuransznunnmituumileivunumiduasaarianigemiim

wmuﬂwmmmmwuamﬂaaunummnﬂiwm ﬁmmmmm’]mﬂummmmmnammanLﬂaﬂuﬂaamimﬁﬁmmm
cluéfmmwammmamﬂ

(e 5]

Aa
ﬂ1‘§9]€l€l1£lﬁ3»l‘ljﬂ1u‘ﬂ au

Q
aQ
&

Q

UNIVANICH ANNUAL REPORT 2015

v3ta Suilgnihdunsduduiuiidnmu (easBoaoglunth 124) denulnogaamnsaldsumsdedinu
Tuil 2536 fhuszoznandn 30 1wl 2566 Wnsimudssnisldudnmului 2526 duszszna 30 T Jagiuld
Ao gaaud o Tuil 21 mwou w.at. 2556 Tasogazninmstumwadinihlsonidovuididuiion 10,849-1-60 13
(nganswmdunndszsnunssumatasneazidoaluniin 124) mnma%’gmaé’ﬂﬁuclﬁ]‘lﬁﬁiamq&'uﬂmu“luﬁﬁumuﬁﬂimﬁﬁv
muive wsdnansznuderiimlnsiuiilgnihdueisizanasaslasinsivevesuitvaslasinssdognonidnly

Q
(3
oe
€
o

MIUITUUesINuananduhay

Tulszmelneiimsuisduegaguunalumsivdernathduaassninlsnuanaiiuhduvinalvgunndt 50 uvs

a a IS 1 ﬂl IS o 1 1T a &l ! 1 v ﬂgl o d‘d

gintsidmmidluaaialszina 5.4% deiilssnuanauilnifevuisdinanssnudemssudenatduaanulsanuii
I a o A&
agianluszAunil

uihasillaanadauddliRetulugaamnsaniiiuhdimat udgindsdiannsousquruszozsnlunsinm
é’mwmi@ﬂm"l"ﬂé’ T@aﬁu?ﬁmmwtnﬂﬁﬁfamiwamuaumﬂmﬁmmaﬁluﬁﬂanﬂwﬁuﬁﬁuiuﬂivmﬁ'lm Tasiuiilgnihduld
AN 320,000 1gAUNT(2 duls ) Tl 2546 1lu 720,000 wawns (4.5 Swuld Hlul 2555 (mn dninanufsugi
matneng) Wil Ussmalngsdosimaveeidimandaveslssnuatalusaniladifestu uiueafimaseiuimne
tgnonlimigadumdimsnaaimuiiuveslsa

Univanich



Biofuels Demand Growth (Cont’d)

If the manufacture of biodiesel is perceived to cause the price of vegetable oils to rise to an unacceptably high level
some governments may withdraw their biodiesel mandates and biodiesel subsidies. This may cause a reduction in the use
of biodiesel and a surplus of vegetable oils on world markets and lower prices for oil palm farmers.

In 2015, approximately 8.7 million tonnes of palm oil was used in biodiesel production which accounted for 14%
of total palm oil usage. If international biodiesel consumers become concerned about the environmental sustainability of
Asian palm oil production, there may be reduced demand for palm oil biodiesel. Of the 300 million hectares deforested
in the world from 1990 to 2010 about 3% was planted with oil palms (not taking crop conversion into account). (Source:
FAO) Despite this fact, oil palms have become a target for some environmental NGOs. Furthermore, the decline in crude
oil price since late 2014 may reduce the use of vegetable oil in the biodiesel industry in the year ahead, resulting in the
decline in palm oil prices.

Univanich has become a member of the Roundtable on Sustainable Palm Qil (RSPO) and the company became a
certified supplier of sustainable palm oil in 2013. While sustainability certification increases production costs it also presents
an opportunity for a company like Univanich, which can demonstrate a proven track record of environmental, economic
and social sustainability.

Exchange rates

International trade in palm oil is conducted in US dollars. Importers and Exporters from Thailand can therefore be
affected by the value of the Thai Baht relative to the US dollar.

In the short term Univanich hedges any currency risk on individual sales contracts which are denominated in US
dollars.

Renewal of Land Concessions

Parts of the Univanich oil palm plantations are planted on land leased under concession from the Government (refer
Annual Report page 125 for details).

The Topi concession was renewed in 1993 and runs for a further 30 years to 2023.
The Chean Vanich concession was issued in 1983 and ran for 30 years to 2013.

The Chean Vanich concession expired on April 21st, 2013. In 2010 the company submitted a renewal application
to continue utilizing 10,849-1-60 rai of the concession area (refer to Chairman’s Report and Annual Report Page 125 for
the detail). If the Government decided not to renew all or part of the Chean Vanich lease, the company’s plantation area
might be reduced and many of the company’s research programmes would be terminated.

Competition from new crushing mills

In Thailand there is strong competition for purchased fruit amongst at least 50 major crushing mills. Univanich has
about 5.4% share of this market. New crushing mills and expanded existing mills can affect the level of competition for
purchased fruit.

Although new crushing capacity is entering the industry every year, Univanich has achieved a good long term
growth rate. This has been made possible by the company’s continuing investment in new processing capacity and by the
expansion of Thailand’s oil palm planted area which is reported to have increased from 320,000 hectares (2.0 million rai)
in 2003 to 720,000 hectares (4.5 million rai) in 2013. (source: Department of Agriculture). At this rate of planting growth,
Thailand will require a similar rate of expansion of crushing capacity but expansion of new planting and expansion of new
crushing capacity will not always match.

O
o
Al
[_.
07
@)
W
(1]
o
—
<
-]
Z
Z
<
T
o
2
<
=
2
3




.,n

Iﬂ%\‘iﬂﬁ’]\‘iﬂ’]‘iﬂmuuﬂ -ﬂ’]%"Qﬂ

n.._.

ﬂ']ﬁ

ADMENSTNNTUTENUAZE LTINS

snganasall Aiusluu Idaeennnanzduimsuisndeiun 31 sunaw 2558

31 fUNAN 2557 31 fUAN 2558
1. wweedsny iy 175,910,420 175,910,420 0
2. wane anluy 6,952,840 6,952,840 0
3. u'NET’l’Jﬂ'Iigi]u'l 'n‘ﬁﬁf 0 0 0
4. UENBINBN NY 23,634,990 23,634,990 0
5. a3 win gelandna 0 0 0
6. a3 WaR§ FACgIUY 290,000 290,000 0
7. ¥3. 9% (naUABY 9,947,000 9,947,000 0
- 8. WA BYIYAA 0 0 0
8 9. uNaMgNNNA 9331033 0 0 0
— 10. ¥3. ¥03 In 0 0 0
0%
BZI 31 fUNAN 2557 31 fUNAN 2558
—] 1. 43 99%U (NAUADY 9,947,000 9,947,000 0
g 2. @3 wagg FAsigyU 290,000 290,000 0
7 3. 3. @195a dad 4,200 24,200 20,000
E 4. wwana¥eml Awusluus 21,330 21,330 0
5. wesignasd avandsud 30,000 30,000 0
5 6. WEWND AdBANTA 0 0 0
7 7. WYAUR @ned 120,000 120,000 0
<C
=
Z
J

1%

S1ETANNRRUNDDNUGIGA 10 S18U5N 4 JUN 31 FUIAN 2558

q L]

v v o v aa v
Ay it | Feway

1. wwensny nily 175,910,420 18.71
2. WUNiAng il 91,116,300 9.69
3. CHASE NOMINEES LIMITED 65,667,200 6.99
4. USEM WETNIY 1NA 55,966,620 5.95
5. UBS AG SINGAPORE BRANCH 39,000,000 4.15
6. wouzad Iagaetin 34,053,170 3.62
7. WNEUGUA INTIUANIA 27,623,500 2.94
8. UNANIINM NUY 23,634,990 2.51
9. UNAMIIU NUY 23,294,820 2.48
10. unNaEM0IYY MUY 22,554,980 2.40

wewemsnetuiuna

vismiuTomensteduiiusalisiniitosas 50 vesmlsgniluudasil Meiluegfuaousnamsiuuasunumsaimu

voau3Enluenan

Univanich




SHAR_EHQLDER STRUCTURE ?‘

AND I\/IANAGEI\/IENT

Board of Directors and Management

The Company’s Board of Directors No of Shares No of Shares Change
31 December 2014 | 31 December 2015

1.  Mr. Apirag Vanich 175,910,420 175,910,420 0
2. Mrs. Phortchana Manoch 6,952,840 6,952,840 0
3. Ms. Kanchana Vanich 0 0 0
4. Ms. Aungkhana Vanich 23,634,990 23,634,990 0
5.  Dr. Prote Sosothikul 0 0 0
6. Dr. Palat Tittinutchanon 290,000 290,000 0
7. Mr. John Clendon 9,947,000 9,947,000 0
8.  Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati 0 0 0
9. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra 0 0 0

Mr. Chong Toh 0

Management Committee No of Shares No of Shares Change
31 December 2014 31 December 2015

1.  Mr. John Clendon 9,947,000 9,947,000

2. Dr. Palat Tittinutchanon 290,000 290,000 0
3. Mr. Howard Hill 4,200 24,200 20,000
4. Mr. Skulrath Siriphannon* 21,330 21,330 0
5. Mr. Nattapong Dachanabhirom 30,000 30,000 0
6. Mr. Phiphit Khlaisombat 0 0 0
7. Mr. Santi Suanyot 120,000 120,000 0

* Mr.Skulrath Siriphannon resigned from the Univanich Management Committee on 31st December 2015.

Shareholding Structure : The 10 largest shareholders as at 31 December 2015

Shareholders Number Of Shares

1. Mr. Apirag Vanich 175,910,420 18.71 E

2. Mrs. Chantip Vanich 91,116,300 9.69 5

3. Chase Nominees Limited 65,667,200 6.99 —

4. Chean Vanich Co., Ltd. 55,966,620 5.95 %

5. UBS AG Singapore, Branch 39,000,000 4.15 [

6. Mr. Narut Chitrudiamphai 34,053,170 3.62 gé

7. Ms. Narumol Vikranpong 27,623,500 2.94 1

8. Ms. Aungkhana Vanich 23,634,990 251 5

9. Ms. Rojana Vanich 23,294,820 2.48 ya

10. Ms. Oranutch Vanich 22,554,980 2.40 E
Dividend Policy 5
The Company has a policy to pay cash dividend of not less than 50% of its net profit after taxation. However, whether Z
the Company will pay a dividend and the amount thereof will depend, amongst other things, on the Company’s financial §
conditions and future plans. 7
)
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Mr Apirag Vanich

Chairman
Age 51

Education: Master’s degree in Business Administration
from Indiana University and a degree in Agricultural
Economics from Purdue University in the United States

Experience: Director of the Vanich group of companies
in 1990 and Executive Chairman of the group since 1992.
The Vanich group of companies is concentrated mainly in
Thailand and in addition to the Univanich palm oil business
the group has interests in mining, transport, property
development and hospital services.

I0OD Program:

* Director Accreditation Program (DAP) #37/2005

* Director Certification Program (DCP) #60/2005

¢ Finance for Non-Finance Director (FND) #19/2005
* The Role of Chairman (RCP) #13/2006

 Leader Program, Capital Market Academy
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Mrs Phortchana Manoch

[
Director

Age 61

Education: Bachelor of Laws from Dhurakij Pundit
University. Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
from the University of Wisconsin, Green Bay, the United
States. Master’s degree in Hospital Administration from
the University of Wisconsin, Green Bay, the United States.

Experience: Currently Chief Executive of Aikchol
Hospital Public Co., Ltd., a group of private hospitals in
Chonburi Province. Mrs Manoch has been a director of the
Univanich business for more than fifteen years and is also
a director of other companies in Vanich group.

IOD Program:

* Director Certification Program (DCP) #25/2005

¢ Financial Statements for Directors (FSD) #13/2011

* Good Governance for Medical Executive Course
—Class 1 from King Prajadhipok’s Institute

Univanich



UNEINIYIU MUY

NITUAT
91y 58 1

PMsANY: Ysyananvinmsiiu um
InragIanouda, anigomIn

‘lJ'i%ﬁ‘]JﬂTiﬂi: NITUNITVBIUTHEN

aaudt 2526 uazidlunssumsusEnlunguandis sIumansEn
Tsawenunaenya 90a (MNwY)

MIDUIHHANGATNIINNT: UNAINYN Ny

WIUNITOUTN

. wé’ﬂqmﬂﬁumiﬁaaﬁu (DAP) n3afi 36/2548 vosanal
guaivantiunssumuitming

Ms Kanchana Vanich

Director
Age 58

Education: A degree in finance from the University of
Wisconsin, in the United States.

Experience: Ms. Kanchana Vanich has been a Director in
the Univanich business since 1983 and is also a director
of other companies in the Vanich group, including Aikchol
Hospital Public Company Limited.

IOD Program:
* Director Accreditation Program (DAP) #36/2005
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Dr Palat Tittinutchanon
.
Director

Age 69

Education: Ph.D. (Soil and Plant Science) University of
Florida, U.S.A., a Master’s degree from North Carolina
State University, USA. and a Bachelor degree from
Kasetsart University in Thailand

Experience: Before joining Univanich in 1988,

Dr Palat Tittinutchanon was Senior Oil Palm Agronomist
in Thailand’s Department of Agriculture. In 1988 he was
appointed Research Officer responsible for the Univanich
R&D programme. From 1994 he was seconded overseas
by Unilever for two years as Estate Manager in Pamol
Plantations Sdn Bhd in Malaysia. Upon his return to
Thailand in 1996, he was appointed as Plantations Manager,
responsible for operations in Univanich oil palm estates.

In April 2012, Dr Palat was appointed to the Board as
Plantations Director and Head of Oil Palm Research.

10D Program:

Univanich
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Ms Aungkhana Vanich

Director
Age 56

Education: Master’s degree in Business Administration
from the University of New Haven in Connecticut, the
United States.

Experience: Ms Aungkhana Vanich was a Director in the
Univanich business from 1989 to 1995 hefore re-joining
the company in 2000. She is currently also Executive
Director of property developer Vanich Lineal Co., Ltd.
and a Director of other companies in the Vanich Group.

IOD Program:
¢ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) #36/2005
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Mr John Clendon

.
Managing Director

Age 67

Education: Diplomas in Agriculture and in Valuation
and Farm Management, from Lincoln University in New
Zealand.

Experience: From 1980 to 1998 Mr John Clendon was
employed by Unilever Plantations and Plant Science
Group of the UK, holding various management positions
in the Asia-Pacific region, including that of Managing
Director of the Univanich joint venture in Thailand from
1991 to 1996. Prior to re-joining Univanich in October
1998, Mr Clendon was Director of Unilever’s oil palm
operations in East Asia, Chairman and Managing
Director of Unipamol Malaysia Sdn Bhd. and director of
Unifield PLC in the UK

IOD Program:
¢ Director Accreditation Program (DAP) #57/2005
* Director Certification Program (DCP) #95/2007
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Dr Prote Sosothikul

Director
Age 48

Education: Doctorate in Business Administration from
the American University of Hawaii and Master of Science
degree from Boston University, USA.

Experience: Currently Vice President of Business
Development for Seacon Development Public Company
Limited, the developer and operator of the largest retail
shopping complex in Thailand. Dr Prote Sosothikul was
appointed as a non-executive director on the Univanich
Board in 2000.

IOD Program:
* Director Certification Program (DCP) #40/2004

Mr Suchad Chiaranussati
.
Chairman of the Audit Committee/

Independent Director
Age 52

Education: Master’s degree in Management Science from
Imperial College, University of London and an honours
degree in economics and political science from the London
School of Economics.

Experience: Between 1991 and 1998, Mr Chiaranussati
was a vice-president of Investment Banking at JP Morgan’s
Proprietary Investment and Investment Banking Unit.
In late 1998 he was appointed as an advisor to the Bank
of Thailand on matters relating to corporate sector debt
restructuring, and the Financial Institutions Development
Fund. Mr Chiaranussati was the Managing Principal of
Westbrook Partners till early 2005. Today, Mr Chiaranussati
is the Managing Principal of RECAP Partners and is
responsible for RECAP Partners’ real estate investment
operations for Asia. Mr Chiaranussati was appointed to
the Univanich Board as an Independent Director on 12
February, 2000.

10D Program:
* Director Accreditation Program (DAP) #37/2005

Univanich
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Ms Supapang Chanlongbutra

Audit Committee/Independent Director
Age 59

Education: A degree in Accounting from Thammasart
University and Master’s degree in Public Administration
from the National Institute of Development Administration.

Experience: Ms Chanlongbutra joined Univanich as a
Management Trainee in 1985 and was the Company’s
Financial Controller from 1994 to 1997 before being
promoted to the position of Commercial Manager in charge
of the Company’s financial and accounting activities.
During her 15 years with the Company she participated in
Unilever’s commercial and management training activities
in several countries, and in 1990 was seconded as an
overseas auditor in Unilever’s Internal Audit Department. In
2000 Ms Chanlongbutra resigned her management position
with Univanich to take up management responsibility
for her family’s business interests in plantations, rubber
manufacturing and exporting. Ms Chanlongbutra was
appointed to the Univanich Board as an Independent
Director on 27 July 2003.

IOD Program:
* Director Accreditation Program (DAP) #38/2005
 Audit Committee Program (ACP) #7/2005

Univanich
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Mr Chong Toh

Audit Committee/Independent Director
Age 47

Education: Mr Chong Toh graduated from Oxford
University where he read Philosophy, Politics and
Economics as a British High Commissioner’s scholar, and
obtained a Master of Science in Management from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

Experience: Mr Chong Toh is Senior Executive Vice
President in the International Banking Group at Bangkok
Bank. He is also the Executive Chairman of Bualuang
Securities, the capital markets arm of Bangkok Bank that
he helped to found. Prior to joining Bangkok Bank, he had
also worked at Morgan Stanley and the Government of
Singapore Investment Corporation. Chong also serves on
the boards of Bumrungrad Hospital Plc and Asia Cement
PCL. Mr Chong Toh was appointed to the Univanich Board
as an Independent Director on 15 May 2015.

10D Program:
* Director Accreditation Program (DAP) # 54/2006
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Mr. John Clendon
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Dr. Palat Tittinutchanon

3. WENNS AAgaNLA
Mr. Phiphit Khlaisombat

4. woolgwad dranisud
Mr. Nattapong Dachanabhirom

5. 45, 1050 dad
Mr. Howard Hill

6. WYAUA dIUYA
Mr. Santi Suanyot

Univanich

NITNMI/NITUMIAIANS
Managing Director

fonemstheau vthiheidnhduuniu
Plantations Director, Head of Oil Palm Research

HaamsLamsrhedenss
Chief Engineer

Kaansuamsehemsu
Chief Financial Officer

é{f@miﬁ"ﬂﬂ (ghinii)
Ganeral Manager (UVAN)

Aaamsenladheaiu
Senior Plantations Manager
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_MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

ATIUMI/NITUMITHIAMS (Mu13agTayadiuailunaenisunisysym)
Managing Director (please refer Board of Directors for personal profile)

gannemarhea wamihehedisthduiny (@unsogiayadiuiiluaenisunisysem)
Plantations Director, Head of Oil Palm Research (please refer Board of Directors

Mr. Howard Hill

General Manager (UVAN)
Age 58

Education: Bachelor of Agricultural Science, Post
Graduate Diploma in Commerce (Marketing and
Management) Lincoln University, New Zealand

Experience: Howard joined Univanich in 2015 following
10 years working in Thailand and throughout the
Southeast Asian region with Seed Asia Company Limited
and AgriSource Consultants Ltd. He was appointed as
Business Development Manager to assist the development
of new business opportunities in Thailand and overseas
and has since been promoted to General Manager UVAN
from 1 April 2016.

Mr. Nattapong Dachanabhire

Chief Financial Officer
Age 46

Education: Master of Business Administration, Prince of
Songkla University.

B.A. (Accounting) The University of the Thai Chamber
of Commerce.

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand).

Experience: Nattapong Dachanabhirom worked as
an Audit Supervisor with Coopers & Lybrand (TH)
Company Limited for 5 years from 1992. In 1997
he joined Univanich as Financial Controller and was
promoted to Accounting Manager in 2000, responsible
for the company’s accounting and finance operations.
In January 2016 he was promoted to Chief Financial
Officer responsible for financial operations throughout
the Univanich Group

Univanich
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Mr. Phiphit Khlaisombat

Chief Engineer
Age 45

Education: BE in Industrial/Production Engineering,
King Mong Kut’s University of Technology Thonburi

Experience: Before joining Univanich, Phiphit
Khlaisombat worked as a Project Manager in Berli Jucker
Public Company Limited. He joined Univanich in 2005 as
a Factory Engineer and in 2008 was appointed as Factories
Manager responsible for the operation of the company’s
three palm oil crushing mills with promotion to Group
Engineer in 2009. In January 2016 he was promoted to
Chief Engineer with responsibility for factory operations
and capital projects throughout Univanich operations in
Thailand and the Philippines

Mr. Santi Suanyot

Senior Plantations Manager
Age 53

Education: Bachelor of Science (Agriculture) from
Chiang Mai University in Thailand

Experience: Prior to joining Univanich in 1993, as an
Estate Manager, Santi Suanyot had been employed in
the government’s Horticulture Research Centre and as
an assistant estate manager elsewhere in the oil palm
industry. Since 1993 he has managed several Univanich
estates and in 2006 was appointed as District Manager with
responsibility for business operations in Lamthap District,
Krabi Province and in Cha Uat District, Nakhon Sri
Thammarat Province. In January 2016 he was promoted
to Senior Plantations Manager with responsibility for
management of Univanich’s plantations.

Univanich
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Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had ten Directors, including three Independent Directors, who make up
the Audit Committee.

The Company’s Board of Directors at 31 December 2015

1. Mr. Apirag Vanich Chairman

2. Mrs. Phortchana Manoch Director

3. Ms. Kanchana Vanich Director

4. Ms. Aungkhana Vanich Director

5. Dr. Prote Sosothikul Director

6. Dr. Palat Tittinutchanon Director

7. Mr. John Clendon Managing Director
8. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati Independent Director
9. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra Independent Director
10. Mr. Chong Toh* Independent Director

*Mr.Chong Toh has been appointed as an Independent Director on 15th May 2015 to take the place of M.R.Chatu
Mongol Sonakul who has been resigned from the Univanich Board of Directors on 18th March 2015.

Scope of duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1. The Board of Directors is responsible for managing the public company to be in compliance with the Public
Companies Act and in accordance with the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.

2. The Board of Directors is responsible for managing the Company to be in line with the objectives and resolutions
of the shareholders” meetings.

3. In a transaction in which a director has a personal interest or may have some other conflict of interest with the
Company, that director will not have the right to vote on the matter.

4, Authorized directors must comprise two directors co-signing together with the Company’s seal in order to bind
the Company to its obligations.

5. The Board of Directors can assign power of attorney to any one or more persons or juristic persons to act jointly

or severally on behalf of the Company according to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company,
including appointment or removal of Company employees. The Board of Directors has the right to change or
withdraw such power of attorney already assigned to such persons. The assignment of the power of attorney must
not be in such a way that it will cause the Managing Director or management, or potentially conflicting persons,
to have a conflict of interest with the Company. Such approval is granted in a case of normal business and when
the Board of Directors has already defined the scope of approval clearly.
6. The following activities can be done with the majority approval from the Board of Directors in which one director
possesses one vote:
6.1 Budget approval and the annual business plan
6.2 Borrowing or lending the amount of more than Baht 70 million including borrowing at one time or several
times from the same lender
6.3 Provision of guarantee of an amount over Baht 70 million, whether at one time or several times for the same
borrower
7. The director must inform the Company immediately if:
7.1 He or she has an interest in a contract whether directly or indirectly involving the Company, or
7.2 He or she increases or decreases his/her holding in both shares or debentures of the Company or group
companies
8. The Board of Directors is responsible for monitoring the Company in compliance with the rules and regulations of
both the SET and SEC regarding connected transactions as well as acquisition and disposal of assets of listed
companies.
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Independent Directors

The company has three Independent Directors whose personal profiles are included with the Board of Directors
in this Annual Report.

All three Independent Directors fulfill the following criteria;

® They are not shareholders of the company or of any related, affiliated or associated company, either directly
or indirectly.

* They are not involved in the management of the company or of any related, or associated company, and do
not receive a regular salary from any such company.

® They have no direct or indirect beneficial interest in the finance or management of the company or of any
related or associated company.

* They are not related in any way to a member of management or to the majority shareholders of the company
or of a related or associated company.

* They have not been appointed as a representative to safeguard interests of the company’s directors, majority
shareholders or shareholders who are related to the company’s majority shareholders.

* They are skilled and highly capable of performing the duties of Independent Directors, including giving
opinions and reporting on the financial performance of the company, and to carry out other duties delegated
to them by the Board of Directors, free of the control of management, major shareholders or the close
relatives of such connected persons.

Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s Audit Committee comprises three Independent Directors, as follows:

1. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati Chairman of the Audit Committee
2. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra Audit Committee member

3. Mr. Chong Toh Audit Committee member

Scope of Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

(1)  Toreview the company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate.

(2)  To review the company’s internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are suitable
and efficient, to determine an internal audit unit’s independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer
and dismissal of the chief of an internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of an internal audit.

(3)  Toreview the Company’s compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations, and
the laws relating to the Company’s business.

(4)  To consider, select and nominate an independent person to be the Company’s auditor, and to propose such
person’s remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management meeting with an auditor at least once a year.

(5)  To review the Connected Transactions, or the transaction that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure that
they are in compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s regulations, and are reasonable and for the highest
benefit of the Company.
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(6)  To prepare, and to disclose in the Company’s annual report, an audit committee’s report which must be signed by
the audit committee’s chairman and consist of at least the following information;

(a) An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s financial report.

(b) An opinion on the adequacy of the Company’s internal control system.

(c) An opinion on the compliance with the law on securities and exchange, the Exchange’s regulations, or the
laws relating to the Company’s business.

(d) An opinion on the suitability of an auditor.

(e) An opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests.

(f) The number of the audit committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each committee member.

(g) Anopinion or overview comment received by the audit committee from its performance of duties in accordance
with the charter.

(h) Other transaction which, according to the audit committee’s opinion, should be known to the shareholders and
general investors, subject to the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Company’s board of
directors.

(7)  Toperformany other act as assigned by the Company’s board of directors, with the approval of the audit committee.

Strategic Planning Subcommittee

The Strategic Planning Subcommittee was established by the Board in 2004. Currently it comprises eight Directors,
as follows:

1. Mr. Apirag Vanich Chairman

2. Mrs. Phortchana Manoch Director

3. Dr. Prote Sosothikul Director

4. Dr. Palat Tittinutchanon Director

5. Mr. John Clendon Managing Director
6. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati Independent Director
7. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra Independent Director
8. Mr. Chong Toh Independent Director

The Strategic Planning Subcommittee meets as required and at least once each year, to review the Company strategy
for long-term growth, the Company’s Long Term Plan, and other long-term strategic issues including the succession of
senior management.

Nominating and Remuneration Subcommittee

The Nominating and Remuneration Subcommittee, whose members comprise Non-Executive Directors was
established by the Board on 11 August 2005. Currently the Subcommittee comprises four Directors, as follows:

1. Mr. Apirag Vanich Chairman

2. Dr. Prote Sosothikul Director

3. Mr. Suchad Chiaranussati Independent Director
4. Ms. Supapang Chanlongbutra Independent Director

The Nominating and Remuneration Subcommittee meets as required and at least once each year, to review and
recommend to the Board the framework of senior management appointment and remuneration, and to ensure that there
is a succession plan. As the Executive Directors are not members of the Subcommittee, they do not play any part in the
decisions of their own remuneration.
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As of 31 December 2015, the Company’s Management Committee of senior managers comprises six members as follows:

1. Mr. John Clendon Managing Director

2. Dr. Palat Tittinutchanon Plantations Director, Head of Oil Palm Research
3. Mr. Howard Hill General Manager (UVAN)

4. Mr. Nattapong Dachanabhirom Chief Financial Officer

5. Mr. Phiphit Khlaisombat Chief Engineer

6. Mr. Santi Suanyot Senior Plantations Manager

Duties and Responsibilities of the Managing Director

The Managing Director has the authority to manage the Company’s normal business activities and including
procurement of raw materials, machinery and sale of the company’s products, engagement of employees, and development
of the Univanich business, within the scope of authority and responsibility granted by the Board of Directors.

The Managing Director’s authority does not include approval of any transaction that may involve the Managing
Director or other connected persons which may cause any conflict of interest within the Company. In compliance with
SET regulations, connected transactions or transactions involving the acquisition or disposal of Company assets for which
require shareholders’ approval, unless such transactions are in the normal course of business and for which the Board of
Directors has already clearly defined the scope of approval.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Management

1. Collectively decide on the Company’s operational issues including establishing duties, objectives, guidelines,
policies, corporate governance, production, community and customer relations as being responsible to the
Board of Directors.

2. Authority to approve general expenses, project expenses or investments according to the scope of authorities
and responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors.

3. Authority to hire, appoint, dismiss, define the salary, offer reward, raise the salary and compensate bonus for
employees in the various departments of the company, according to the authorities assigned by the Board of
Directors

4. Authority to act for and on behalf of the Company in any business that is relevant and beneficial to the Company.

5. Act on the Company’s behalf for general management affairs.

The Management’s authority does not include approval of any transactions that may involve Management interest
that may cause any conflict of interest within the Company, including connected transactions or transactions involving the
acquisition or disposal of Company assets, unless such transactions are in the normal course of business and for which
the Board of Directors has already clearly defined the scope of approval.
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Appointment of Directors and Management

Appointment of Directors

* The Board of Directors comprises at least five directors appointed by the shareholders.

« The Board of Directors shall elect the directors to be Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Managing Director and any
other positions as deem appropriate.

« Ateach annual general meeting, at least one-third of the total number of directors must resign. If the number
of directors cannot be divided evenly into threes, the number of directors to resign must be close to one-third.

 Since the Company’s Articles of Association do not specify the method for electing the Board of Directors,
therefore, the election of the Board of Director will be done according to the Public Companies Act which
sets out an election method known as a “cumulative voting” that has the following principles:

1. One shareholder has a total number of votes equal to the number of shares held multiplied by the number
of directors to be elected.

2. Each shareholder can cast the total number of votes according to clause (1) above to elect one or more
candidate to become directors. In case of voting for many candidates, the shareholder can divide votes
in proportion among the candidates.

3. Candidates will be ranked in descending number of votes, and those with highest number of votes will
be elected to become directors according to the number of vacant positions. In the event of a tie, the
decision will be made by drawing lots.

Appointment of the Managing Director
The Board’s Nominating and Remuneration Subcommittee has responsibility to review and recommend senior
management appointment and succession planning.

Remuneration
Remuneration in terms of money
Remuneration for ten directors

Fees and compensation 6.74*

* includes the remuneration for M.R. Chatu Mongol Sonakul who resigned on 18 March 2015

At the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 46 on 30th April 2015, shareholders voted to maintain
Director’s remuneration without change. The remuneration for individual directors is Baht 406,000 per annum, with
the Chairman’s fee set at Baht 609,000 per annum. In addition, the Chairman receives expenses totaling Baht 2,196,150
per annum.

Only the Audit Committee receives meeting expenses amounting to Baht 30,000 per meeting in the case of Audit
Committee members, and Baht 37,500 per meeting in the case of Audit Committee Chairman.

Remuneration for Auditors

Audit Fees 1,308,000 Baht
Audit for Profit per BOI Certificate 42,000 Baht/Certificate

Remuneration for seven senior managers

Salary, awards and compensation 39.06*

* Cash basis and also includes the remuneration for Mr.Skulrath Siriphannon who resigned on 31 December 2015
Other compensation

The Company has established a retirement fund for its employees. Retiring employees will receive retirement
benefits according to the labour law and other benefits according to the Company’s retirement regulations.
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Corporate Governance

Before becoming a listed company in 2003, Univanich followed the Unilever Code of Corporate Governance.
Since listing, the company has adopted the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) guidelines on Good Corporate Governance.

Disclosure of the company’s Code of Corporate Governance is included in the Annual SET Filings (Form 56-1),
Annual Report (Form 56-2) and in the listing documents.

The 15 principles of Corporate Governance adopted by Univanich are as follows;

1. Policy on corporate governance

Treat all shareholders and other stakeholders equally.

The Board of Directors must manage the Company with diligence and care and be fully responsible for their
duties.

Support the management and employees to work with ethical conduct.

Set up an efficient organization structure with the delegation of decision-making authority to different levels
to allow the correct planning, quick delegation and efficient supervision of the work.

Arrange for risk assessment from both internal and external sources through regular meetings between
management and internal auditors to consider various risk factors that could affect the Company’s operation
and projections.

2. Right and equality of shareholders

In 2015, the Company organized an Annual General Meeting of shareholders at a venue in central Bangkok for
shareholders convenience. Notice of the meeting was posted on the company’s website one month before the meeting
and the company sent invitation letters to the shareholders at least seven days prior to the meeting date, in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, and also prepared the minutes of the meeting within 14 days after the
meeting date. The minutes are filed and can be reviewed by shareholders on the company’s website.

3. Right of other stakeholders
The Company places great importance on the rights of various groups of stakeholders as follows:

Employees : The Company treats all its employees equally.

Trading partners : The Company establishes fair policy and operational procedures with its trading partners.
Creditors : The Company conforms with the terms and conditions of any loan.

Clients : The Company sells quality products to its clients at fair prices.

Competitors : The Company does not conduct business in a way that damages its competitors.

Society : The Company conducts business that does not negatively affect society or the environment.

4, Shareholders’ Meeting

The Company emphasises the importance of selecting a convenient central location for shareholders’ meetings and
posting the notice of the meeting on the company’s website one month before the meeting. The company will circulate
the notice and agenda to all shareholders not less than seven days before the meeting. Every director and Independent
Director will normally attend such meetings and the Chairman will allocate appropriate time and opportunity for
shareholders to ask questions and express their view.
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Corporate Governance (Cont’d)

5. Leadership and Vision

The Board of Directors participates in establishing and approving the Company’s policies including the business
plan, and budgets. The Board constantly monitors the Company’s progress according such business plan and budgets.
This also involves assigning responsibility to Management to implement such policies efficiently in order to increase
the enterprise’s value and to generate expected returns to the shareholders, as well as to disclose accurate information
to shareholders in a transparent and timely manner.

Although the Board of Directors has delegated management authority to the Managing Director, the Board of
Directors still retains the highest approval authority according to the Company’s Articles of Association.

6. Conflicts of Interest

The Company has implemented measures to prevent potential conflicts of interest. The Company will strictly
comply with the SEC Act and SET rules and regulations. In any transactions in which directors, management or
shareholders are persons whose personal interest may conflict with the Company’s interest, such persons will not be
eligible to vote approval of such transactions. Any such transactions will be conducted according to the Company’s
normal practice under which the market price will be regarded as a key benchmark and to be comparable to prices in
transactions conducted with unrelated third parties.

The Company publicly discloses its connected party transactions in order to safeguard investors’ interests. Details
can be found in the notes to the audited financial statements. These connected transactions also have to have Audit
Committee approval regarding the necessity and reasonableness of the transactions.

In order to prevent exploitation of inside information, the Company strictly prohibits its directors, management
and employees from using any undisclosed inside information that can affect the share price. The Company shall seek
litigation against any person who is found to use such inside information for personal benefit.

7. Code of Best Practice
The Company’s directors comply with the code of best practice as set out by SET guidelines.

8. Directors’ Roles
Currently, eight directors of the Company are not members of the management team. Three of these eight directors
are Independent Directors who make up the Audit Committee.

9. Separation of Responsibilities

Currently, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Apirag Vanich, does not hold a management position in
the Company. Although Mr. Apirag Vanich is a representative of the Vanich Group, the major shareholder, he is not the
Managing Director. Therefore, there is added assurance that the company’s management and policies are independent.

10.  Director and Management Remuneration
Compensations and incentives provided to directors and management are comparable to other companies in the
same industry and therefore, are justifiable.

The Company agrees to disclose information concerning director and management remuneration according to
the requirement from the SEC.

Univanich

LO)
o
(Q\|
[_.
Y.
O
(W
m
v
—]
<
J
Z
z
<
ac
O
7a
<
>
z
3

(0)]
=




UNIVANICH ANNUAL REPORT 2015

MINNUQUANIM3 (o)

11.  madserunmenssums

vmmﬂ”lwumiﬂmmﬂm enasumsLsimegtios 3iioudenss Tnslimahdamfdeialssmioudayatsznou
M31szgu19EaN Y Winaienssunsdanihlioont 7 auﬂamuﬂwyumwmwuﬂiumamﬂumamiw Tahidl 2558
frndmatssitadu 4%t unsiinsmumadhsnnlseqag 18wl

1. wweding Nily Uszmunssums 4
2. wanaw i lus NIINM3 4
3. WREIMYIUN N NIINM3 4
4. uNEMBInan Ny NIINM3 4
5. Q3. Win welandna NIINM3 4
6. ¥3.90%U  INAUADY NIINM3 4
7. wenagg JAcigIUL NFINAT 4
8. WA eI Yadd Uszmunssumsnsadeu 3
9. voua¥NA I9uena lamna * NIIUNIATIVABY 1
10, UNAMFNINA 3331033 NITNMINTIADY 4
11. 3.909 In * NITUMIATIIADY 2

o ' A A o oA 19 A
*3.509 I IasumandeaadiunssumsdasziioTui 15 waumay 2558 wnu 1.5, Iqu9na launadaa1asnain
ANLNTIUNTUIEHNNIUN 18 Ay 2558

12, AMZAYNIINMT
Tid) 2558 ﬂmyauﬂimmﬂuﬂmuﬂsiumimwumm"lﬂu

NITUNIINIIVADY
mw"lﬂummﬂm ﬂiinﬂﬁﬂi)ﬁ]’daﬂmﬂ]u‘ﬂ 29 ﬂiﬂg1ﬂh2546 Tagiinsemsmsamuniianuaz 37 il 2558 any
ﬂiﬁJﬂ’li@li’Jﬁ]ETEJ‘IJlJﬂﬁ%ﬂﬂiu"]m‘UUVNWNG] 4 ﬂi\iLWE]Wﬁ]'liil!'llﬂil’JﬂUiuUUﬂi’Ji]ﬁﬂ'U‘Uﬂ\ﬁJiHVl

ANZAUNIINMINMDUNAYNS

vitialiinnzaynssumsmiunagns e Tui 13 waemou 2547 devmihiiinsannumiunagniveaisn
wiseafumsialavesganoluewing unugsivluszozonvesuiin uaznagnisuy ifearulasimaszozen Huiams
WITAUNNURUMIAUNBAMUNUIFUTTTE AU

ANZOYNIINMINITAITH AT HDIIDINANBUINY

W ldudadanus £OYNTIUMINIATINIALANTONNAADLINY o Tuil 11 Rnay 2548 Wofinsannumiuuas
°lﬁ’ﬁ”|ﬂ‘§nmmﬂmuﬂimmimw‘lumiummuawmwu@niaummuLmu“lmmgusmasmqummw sl
UHUM LN LTNITEAUG

13. ‘5“"]]1]i’niﬂ)‘ﬂﬂﬂ!!ﬁ”ﬂ]‘iﬁi')ﬂﬁﬂﬂﬂ181u
‘]J‘J'H'ﬂ"lﬂi]9]ﬁﬂﬂu’)ﬂﬂu@]ﬂﬁ]ﬁﬂhﬂ?EJCl‘L!LIJE]'JLl‘V] 29 ﬂiﬂ;]'lﬂlJ 2546 ﬂluﬂiﬂﬁﬂﬂm”ﬂiinﬂﬁﬁiﬁlﬁﬂﬂ Iﬂﬂ“ﬂu')ﬂﬂ‘u
Gli'J‘t]ﬁfJ“]JﬂWfJﬂlui’nJﬂ\‘lUiHVlQ@]i')ﬁ]ﬁﬂﬂﬂ?chlu‘VHJTH“VIi]'NiJWL'W’f)“]ﬂt’fluﬂﬁﬁ]ﬂﬂﬁllﬁwﬂﬂﬂ'm@llﬁﬂ'liﬂ'JUQ‘JJﬂ']ﬂclusll’fNUiBﬂ

14. FI9NUVDIAMLNIINMT
o v A I v I~ ' v A
amznIsuMsTalilauznssunsansdeudzdiuganuiiulunemsssrieduy dlamelumnemeisznevay
mMIRuveanEniirunmIanIdeunnfaeuiind lasezdaliiimsivseslaslinssunmsansaeulinnuiduneinuai
wﬂuuawmmﬁmwﬁﬁuwammswmiiwmwmu uaw‘mﬂm@nimmﬂimmimnaﬁm"lmﬂamsmmmiumswmmﬁmms
seinfufionfieiu i]:l‘lriUiB‘Vlﬁ]ﬂW]Nl,b])‘fJJGIf'lﬂJVIl,ﬂuﬂﬁiumﬂ‘Ui‘HVl uJuv’ﬂwmmmummnmwmﬁmmqnumnan (i
ﬂiznaummmuclwmﬂmznﬁumima@na‘vgu

Univanich



Corporate Governance (Cont’d)

11.  The Board of Directors’ Meeting

The Company organises Board of Directors’ meeting at least once every three months. Invitations are sent out to
all directors not less than seven days prior to the meeting, according to the Company’s Articles of Association. During
2015, the Company organized four Board of Directors’ meetings with directors’ participation as follows:

1. Mr.Apirag Vanich Chairman 4
2. Mrs.Phortchana Manoch Director 4
3. Ms.Kanchana Vanich Director 4
4. Ms.Aungkhana Vanich Director 4
5. Dr.Prote Sosothikul Director 4
6. Mr.John Clendon Director 4
7. Mr.Palat Tittinutchanon Director 4
8. Mr.Suchad Chiaranussati Chairman of Audit Committee 3
9. M.R. Chatu Mongol Sonakul* Audit Committee 1
10. Ms.Supapang Chanlongbutra Audit Committee 4
11. Mr.Chong Toh* Audit Committee 2

*Mr.Chong Toh was appointed as an Independent Director on 15th May, 2015 to take the place of M.R.Chatu
Mongol Sonakul, who resigned from the Univanich Board of Directors on 18th March, 2015

12.  Subcommittees of the Board
In 2015 there were three Board Subcommittees

Audit Committee:

The Board created the Audit Committee on 29 July 2003. Members of the Audit Committee have tenure of three
years. During 2015, the Audit Committee has conducted four meetings to consider the implementation of the Company’s
Internal Audit system.

Strategic Planning Subcommittee:

On 13 November 2004 the Board created the Strategic Planning Subcommittee to consider the Company’s’ long-
term growth options, the Company’s Long Term Plan, and other long-term strategic issues including the succession of
senior management.

Nominating and Remuneration Subcommittee:

On 11 August 2005 the Board created the Nominating andRemuneration Subcommittee to review and recommend
to the Board the framework of senior management appointment and remuneration, and to ensure that there is a succession
plan.

13.  Internal Control System and Internal Audit

The Company set up an internal audit system on 29 July 2003 to be supervised by the Audit Committee. This
team may include an internal audit firm employed by the company from time to time to help set up and monitor the
internal control system.

14.  Report of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors appointed the Audit Committee for the purpose of seeking opinions regarding the necessity
and reasonableness of connected transactions, which were certified and documented in the notes of the financial statement.
In the case where the Audit Committee cannot or does not have the capability to assess transactions in a reasonable
manner, the Company will be responsible for finding an independent specialist to provide opinions on the transaction
on the Audit Committee’s behalf in order to provide the Board of Directors and shareholders with the best information
for their consideration.
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Corporate Governance (Cont’d)

15.  Investor Relations

In compliance with SEC requirements, the Company has provided sufficient information in the filing report and
prospectus. The Company will continue to disclose relevant information to the public in a timely and correct manner
with respect to the SEC and SET regulations. The Company has appointed the Managing Director and the Commercial
Manager as the persons responsible for investor relations affairs.

Internal Control

Under the management of Unilever PLC, during the years 1983 - 1998, the company established systems of internal
controls which were periodically reviewed by Unilever’s Internal Audit Department. In 2003 the company established
its own Internal Audit function, reporting to the Audit Committee which comprises three Independent Directors.

During 2004 — 2005, in order to further develop the Company’s internal audit skills the Audit Committee appointed
BDO Richfield Ltd, of Bangkok, to carry out risk assessments and audits of key business activities.

During 2010 - 2015, the Audit Committee appointed KPMG Phoomchai Business Advisory Ltd., to develop an
internal audit plan based on the results of risk assessment and conducting the internal audit execution of key business
activities. Details of current internal audit activities are recorded in the Report of the Audit Committee Chairman.

Governance for subsidiaries
In order to manage and monitor the company’s subsidiaries properly, the Board of Directors appointed
representatives to be directors in subsidiaries. List of subsidiaries’ directors are shown below.

1. Mr.Apirag Vanich Chairman Chairman Director
2. Mrs.Phortchana Manoch Director

3. Ms.Kanchana Vanich Director

4. Ms.Aungkhana Vanich Director

5. Dr.Prote Sosothikul Director

6. Mr.John Clendon Director Director Director
7. Mr.Palat Tittinutchanon Director Director
8. Mr.Suchad Chiaranussati Chairman of Audit Committee

9. Ms.Supapang Chanlongbutra Audit Committee

10. Mr.Chong Toh Audit Committee
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Univanich is committed to operating its palm oil business and related businesses sustainably and in an environmentally and socially
responsible manner. The company has established its CSR policy as follows:

1. Good Corporate Governance
In order to generate growth and increase value for shareholders, the company will follow best management practices to ensure
good corporate governance. Thiswill provide the framework to achieve the company’s objectives while balancing the interests
of all stakeholders.

2. Treating Employees Fairly and Equally
The company provides fair compensation to its employees at levels which are comparable to other companies in the same
industry and which comply with local labour laws. The company will not employ illegal child labour, and will not discriminate
on the grounds of race, gender, disability, nationality and sexual orientation. The company respects the right of its employees
and will always strive to provide a safe working environment.

3. Care for the Environment and Health & Safety
Currently, Univanich’s oil palm plantations and palm oil mills are certified to Roundtable on Sustainable Palm Oil (RSPO)
standard. The RSPO certification ensures that the company follows the principles and criteria of RSPO sustainable
practices. Inaddition, the company operates methane capture to generate renewable energy and reduce greenhouse gas emissions.
The Univanich methane capture projects are registered by the United Nations FCCC as a clean development mechanism (CDM).
Univanich Certified Emission Reductions (CER) issued by the UNFCCC has qualified as Gold Standard CERs, sold as carbon credits.

4. Customer and Supplier Relationships

To recognize the importance of its customer and supplier relationships, the company is committed to interacting with all
customers and suppliers in an ethical and fair manner. The company will consider customer feedback in order to best meet
their requirements and improve customer satisfaction. Further, the company offers fair and equitable prices to suppliers of its
oil palm fruits. The company’s purchasing process emphasises transparency and traceability. Through the Univanich Oil Palm
Research Centre the company provides knowledge and training in best practice agricultural methods to smallholder oil palm farmers
to help them increase yield and profitability. The company has assisted 170 smallholder farmers in successfully obtaining
RSPO certification.

5. Community Development
The company is actively involved in improving the quality of life in the local communities in which it works. Each year, the
company provides support in the form of donations or equipment to local schools, hospitals, and community groups.

In 2015, Univanich performed key CSR activities as follows:
Project: Assist oil palm smallholder group in Aoluk area to become RSPO certified
*  After successful assisting 170 smallholders in Plai Phraya District area to become the first smallholder group in the world to be

RSPO certified in 2013, Univanich is cooperating with Prince of Songkla University to assist another smallholder group in Aoluk
areatobecome RSPO certified. The Roundtable on Sustainable Palm Oil (RSPO) standard is a global standard for sustainable palm oil.
The RSPO standard ensures that oil palm plantation apply best practices and that no new primary forest are sacrificed for oil palm.
Currently, the smallholder group in Aoluk has 78 members and covers oil palm plantation of 3,187 rai. This group aim to be
RSPO certified by 2016.

Project: Financing Wat Had Thua Community School in Plai Phraya District, Krabi to build general purpose building
+ Wat Had Thua Community School currently does not have enough buildings for students and community to do indoor activities.
The board ofdirectors therefore agreed to donate Baht 1,020,000 to assist in constructing general purpose building.
The construction of this new building was completed in 2015

Project: Ambulance Donated for Nong Talay Subdistrict, Krabi
+Nong Talay Subdistrict Administrative Organization (OBT Nong Talay) has a popuiation of approximately 9,500 in the area
surrounding the oil exporting pier. In response to social requirements in this area, the Board of Directors generously agreed to
donate a fully functional ambulance, including lifesaving equpment, to OBT Nong Talay with a budget of Baht 1.5 million.

Project: Community Relations
« Participated and sponsored many schools, municipalities and subdistrict administrative organizations (SAQSs) to arrange
activities for children on Children Day on 9 Jan, 2015.
« Participated in local football competition by sending a foothall team from Univanich to compete with local teacher,
police and head of village teams in Plai Phraya District in June 2015.
Participated in “Rak Aulok Fair” arranged by Aoluk District during December 3-5, 2015
Sponsor Krabi Red Cross Fair 2015, taking place during December 30, 2015- January 8, 2016
Donated Baht 100,000 to Rotary Aoluk to purchase lifesaving equipment for accident rescue
Donated 30 table and chair sets for 2 schools in Lamthap district in June 2015.
Joined with people in Tongsai Thong sub-district, Krabi Province in a project for the conservation of natural resource and environment
Participated in cycling event “Bike for MUM” in August and “Bike for DAD” in December 2015 organized by the Government
and Thai people
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Univanich Agribusiness
Corporation (UAC)
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- "RELATED TRANSAC]

Univanich Agribusiness
Corporation (UAC)

Univanich’s subsidiary in the
Phillipines. Univanich owns
99.99% shares.

¢ Univanich provided the
loan of USD 3 million to
UAC. This load is a
non-collateral and
interest-free board.
The first repayment is
due after 5 years,
commencing from the
first draw-down date.

98.44

Phuket Rubber Co., Ltd Common directors and (or), | ¢ Purchase palm fruit at 8.61 6.84
shareholders market price

Aik Rok Industry Co., Ltd Common directors and (or), | ¢ Purchase palm fruit at 0.3 0.27
shareholders market price

Suan Surat Co., Ltd Common directors and (or), | ¢ Purchase palm fruit at 11.58 13.00
shareholders market price

Chean Vanich Co., Ltd Common directors and (or), | ¢ Purchase palm fruit at 3.84 3.63
shareholders market price

Chean Vanich Transport Common directors and (or), |  Port charge for export 6.83 0.89

Co., Ltd shareholders shipping

Univanich Carmen Palm Oil Univanich’s indirect * Univanich paid advanced 1.06 0.39

Corporation (UCPOC) subsidiary in the Philippines | for UCPOC.
where UAC owns 51% of * Univanich charges 0.89 3.75
UCPOC shares. service fee for managing

subsidiary UCPOC.

107.77

Univanich Carmen Palm Oil

Univanich’s indirect

* Univanich paid advanced

Corporation (UCPOC) subsidiary in the Philippines | for UCPOC and
where UAC owns 51% of service fee for managing
UCPOC shares. subsidiary UCPOC.

1.94

6.10

The Necessity and appropriateness of related transactions

The Company has carefully considered the necessity and the appropriateness in order to obtain the greatest benefit
for the Company and its shareholders. The Company has received and paid the compensation at fair market prices as
shown in the above table.

Measures or procedures to approve related transactions

1. Connected persons were excluded from the approval process whenever the Company entered into connected
transactions. Former connected transactions were proven to be normal business of the Company and the pricing policy
of those transactions were based on prices comparable to other transactions conducted with other unrelated parties as
described by the Company’s Auditor in the notes to financial statements as well as in the opinion of the Company’s
Audit Committee.

2. The process for approval of connected transactions must comply with rules and regulations of SET. The Company
clearly defines rules and process for approval of the connected transactions. Conflicted parties have no voting rights in
approving such connected transactions.

Univanich
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To the Shareholders of Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

I have audited the accompanying consolidated and company financial statements of Univanich Palm Oil Public
Company Limited and its subsidiaries and of Univanich Palm Qil Public Company Limited, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the related consolidated and
company statements of comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Thai Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit
in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the consolidated and company financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated and company financial position of Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited and its
subsidiaries and of Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2015, and its consolidated and
company results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting
Standards.

%7/ <2

Chaisiri Ruangritchai
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4526
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Ltd.

Bangkok
26 February 2016
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2015

Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes Baht Baht Baht Baht
Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 523,823,766 697,158,350 469,467,180 679,242,887
Short-term investments 7 1,400,000,000 1,410,000,000 1,400,000,000 1,410,000,000
Trade and other receivables, net 8 132,231,602 91,572,392 134,799,072 85,718,168
Inventories, net 9 211,757,577 217,694,759 199,888,355 164,105,573
Other current assets 11,798,589 9,710,399 10,717,767 8,122,161
Total current assets 2,279,611,534 2,426,135900 2,214,872,374 2,347,188,789

Non-current assets

Investment in subsidiaries 10 -

6,480,000 6,480,000
Loans to contractors 2,518,855 2,562,428 2,518,855 2,562,428

Long-term loans to a subsidiary 28 ¢) - - 107,769,900 98,438,400
Palm plantation, net 11 123,039,291 117,749,939 = 123,039,291 117,749,939
Property, plant and equipment, net 12 1,302,533,342 1,231,482,641 1,064,117,015 959,156,258
Prepayment of land rent 28 d) 13,878,407 14,173,526 - -
Advance payment for purchase of machinery 696,877 753,385 - -
Deferred tax assets, net 13 76,008,859 65,156,011 53,643,141 57,983,541
Other non-current assets 12,192,240 - 12,192,240 =
Total non-current assets 1,530,867,871 1,431,877,930 1,369,760,442 1,242,370,566
Total assets 3,810,479,405 3,858,013,830 3,584,632,816 3,589,559,355
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The notes to the consolidated and company financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2015

Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes Baht Baht Baht Baht
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 118,293,122 86,015,295 112,148,219 41,016,746
Current portion of long-term loan 16 16,230,097 11,067,527 - -
Income tax payable 28,844,756 41,484,374 28,844,756 41,484,374
Accrued expenses 15 37,344,326 77,170,190 27,202,493 68,547,236
Other current liabilities 19,292,521 8,281,646 18,060,892 7,863,816
Total current liabilities 220,004,822 224,019,032 186,256,360 158,912,172
Non-current liabilities
Long term loan from financial institution 16 151,817,703 161,208,773 - -
Employee benefits obligation 17 _ 153,456,231 138,396,871 _ 153,456,231 138,396,871
Total non-current liabilities 305,273,934 299,605,644 153,456,231 138,396,871
Total liabilities 525,278,756 _ 523,624,676 _ 339,712,591 _ 297,309,043
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 18
Registered share capital
940,000,000 ordinary shares at par value of
Baht 0.50 each 470,000,000 470,000,000 _ 470,000,000 470,000,000
Issued and paid-up share capital
940,000,000 ordinary shares
paid-up of Baht 0.50 each 470,000,000 470,000,000 470,000,000 470,000,000
Premium on share capital 18 267,503,419 267,503,419 267,503,419 267,503,419
Retained earnings
Appropriated - Legal reserve 19 47,000,000 47,000,000 47,000,000 47,000,000
Appropriated - General reserve 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
Unappropriated 2,410,376,787 2,477,861,398 2,440,416,806 2,487,746,893
Other components of shareholders’ equity (858,430) 35,759 z z
Total equity attributable to the owners
of the parent 3,214,021,776 3,282,400,576 3,244,920,225 3,292,250,312
Non-controlling interests 21 71,178,873 51,988,578 - -
Total shareholders’ equity 3,285,200,649 3,334,389,154 3,244,920,225 3,292,250,312
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 3,810,479,405 3,858,013,830 3,584,632,816 3,589,559,355

The notes to the consolidated and company financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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7 Bluilsvenanulunends
q>: - Washawessanuannlasunnmisulag
Z ANUMIRY 2,688,887 135,741 - -
- ER}Y 2,688,887 135,741 - -
semsfiazlisasznnaenislmighly
Blumlvidenanulunends
- wamlsnnmsdsznamsmuvan
anamaasUsznunedmsy
Tnsamswaselomintinau - 8,448,623 - 8,448,623
- miduldiieriumadaanns
Uszanumsmuvanadiasman’
daznune - (1,689.,725) - (1,689,725)
o} - 6,758,898 : 6,758,898
m lsfiaaSaudmivil 363,070,515 637,585,924 394,469,913 650,694,381
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes Baht Baht Baht Baht
Sales 29 3,988,446,814  5,701,344531 = 3,732,617,291  5,641,571,609
Cost of sales (3,369,294,408) (4,838,066,711) (3,115,455,920) (4,778,932,394)
Gross profit 619,152,406 863,277,820 617,161,371 862,639,215
Other income 22 49,890,835 146,931,243 53,626,443 147,797,295
Selling expenses (92,240,807)  (101,791,349) (73,623,537)  (101,791,349)
Administrative expenses (141,163,666)  (146,177,435)  (122,544,874)  (129,633,380)
Finance cost (9,672,036) (2,146,505) - -
Profit before income tax expense 425,966,732 760,093,774 474,619,403 779,011,781
Income tax expense 24 (65,585,104)  (129,402,489) (80,149,490)  (135,076,298)
Profit for the year 360,381,628 630,691,285 394,469,913 643,935,483
Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified
to profit or loss
- Exchange differences on translation
financial statements 2,688,887 135,741 - -
Total 2,688,887 135,741 - -
Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
- Actuarial gains on defined
employee benefit plans - 8,448,623 - 8,448,623
- Income tax relating to actuarial gains
on defined employee benefit plans - (1,689,725) - (1,689,725)
Total - 6,758,898 - 6,758,898
Total comprehensive income for the year 363,070,515 637,585,924 394,469,913 650,694,381

The notes to the consolidated and company financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

Univanich

LO)
o
(Q\|
[_.
Y.
O
(W
m
v
—]
<
J
Z
z
<
ac
O
7a
<
>
z
3




UNIVANICH ANNUAL REPORT 2015

a o

a a g‘ U d o w
UIHN ﬂmm‘]mmuﬂmu 109 (NHI1BY)

U

o < <
QUﬂ115m1@nuLUﬂLﬁ5ﬂ

dmuaugaiun 31 Funaw w.e. 2558

msutatlumls (Aw)
dunfluvesussnlng)

dunduvesduldideniisnnenivgy

drumdaiiuils (nanu) e
1 A g a v 1
aunfluvesussnlng)

! A | ya Ay o
’chu‘llllﬂu‘ll’e)ﬂﬁ’m'lﬂlﬁﬂ‘l/lvlmJ’muWﬂTUFpJ

o 1 Y g; dw 1 d' [ a o 1
m"lmmgumuwumumuﬂ!ﬂummmw‘lmg

)

v v
Y o A

JUMTHUTIN JUMTRURNIZUTEN

N.f. 2558 N.f. 2557 N.¢. 2558 NW.¢. 2557

HINYINR 1IN STaY) N N
374,315,389 636,391,894 394,469,913 643,935,483

(13,933,761) (5,700,609) - -

360,381,628 630,691,285 394,469,913 643,935,483

373,421,200 642,736,840 394,469,913 650,694,381

(10,350,685) (5,150,916) - -

363,070,515 637,585,924 394,469,913 650,694,381

0.40 0.68 0.42 0.69

mlsdovurunugIu 25

a k]

a a a v I A’ a 49/
mnmwgijsgﬂamun7munmmwun754\7umwwu:iymﬂumuwuwawﬂnmwu

Univanich



o)

I

N G o AP, :.I.r-r Do -I:.-J |
 raNGAL STATEVENTS $ W

Univanich Palm Qil Public Company Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes Baht Baht Baht Baht
Profit (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent 374,315,389 636,391,894 394,469,913 643,935,483
Non-controlling interests (13,933,761) (5,700,609) - -
360,381,628 630,691,285 394,469,913 643,935,483
Total comprehensive income (expense)
attributable to:
Owners of the parent 373,421,200 642,736,840 394,469,913 650,694,381
Non-controlling interests (10,350,685) (5,150,916) - -
363,070,515 637,585,924 394,469,913 650,694,381
Basic earnings per share for
the owners of the parent
Basic earnings per share 25 0.40 0.68 0.42 0.69

The notes to the consolidated and company financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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gonnUriaanull 470,000,000 267,503,419 47,000,000 20,000,000 2,354,052,512 3,158,555,931
Auilumaineszningg 20 - - - - (517,000,000) (517,000,000)
mlsfaaSdmivl - - - - 643,935483 643,935,483
nam lsnmsdsznams
muvanadiasan’
Usznunpdmiulasans
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miduldifeiu
Nan1NINMsUszuns
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W.A. 2558
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Az TN yamu amngrng  dseamll  dalildTaas I
NUBI6 1M um UM 1M 1M UM
gonnUriaanull 470,000,000 267,503,419 47,000,000 20,000,000 2,487,746,893 3,292,250,312
Auilumaineszningg 20 - - - - (441,800,000) (441,800,000)

mlsifiaesadhmsull - -

394,469,913 394,469,913

gannuviasiarsil 470,000,000 267,503,419

47,000,000 20,000,000

2,440,416,806 3,244,920,225
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

Statement of Changes in shareholders’ equity
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Company
2014
Issued Retained earnings
and paid-up Premium on Appropriated
share capital share capital Legal reserve General reserve Unappropriated Total
Note Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Opening balance 470,000,000 267,503,419 47,000,000 20,000,000 2,354,052,512 3,158,555,931
Dividend paid during the year 20 - - - - (517,000,000) (517,000,000)
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 643,935,483 643,935,483
Actuarial gains on defined
employee benefit plans - - - - 8,448,623 8,448,623
Income tax relating to actuarial
gains on defined employee
benefit plans - - - - (1,689,725)  (1,689,725)
Closing balance 470,000,000 267,503,419 47,000,000 20,000,000 2,487,746,893 3,292,250,312
Company
2015
Issued Retained earnings
and paid-up Premium on Appropriated
share capital share capital Legal reserve General reserve Unappropriated Total
Note Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Opening balance 470,000,000 267,503,419 47,000,000 20,000,000 2,487,746,893 3,292,250,312
Dividend paid during the year 20 - - - - (441,800,000) (441,800,000)
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - 394,469,913 394,469,913
Closing balance 470,000,000 267,503,419 47,000,000 20,000,000 2,440,416,806 3,244,920,225

The notes to the consolidated and company financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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- MlEefee (42,275,371) 4,996,191 (41,344,743) 4,221,884
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Notes Baht Baht Baht Baht

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax 425,966,732 760,093,774 474,619,403 779,011,781

Adjustments to:
Allowance for doubtful accounts - 1,900,000 - 1,900,000
Amortisation 11 11,612,497 11,047,617 11,612,497 11,047,617
Depreciation 12 146,739,422 146,423,897 96,443,077 122,176,975
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment ~ (3,999,763)  (5,117,637)  (3,999,763)  (5,117,637)
Unrealised (gain) loss on exchange rate 7,059,507 3,012,150  (9,331,500) (102,800)
Amortisation on prepayment of land rent 295,120 - - -
Increase in employee benefits obligation 17 17,904,714 16,922,631 17,904,714 16,922,631
Interest income 22 (35,826,536) (42,555,903) (35,808,583) (42,535,156)
Interest expenses 9,672,036 2,146,505 - -

Cash flows before changes in working capital 579,423,729 893,873,034 551,439,845 883,303,411
Changes in working capital:
- trade and other receivables (41,212,708) 260,427,594 (50,087,717) 281,733,259
- inventories 7,812,207 6,389,822 (35,782,782) 59,957,075
- other current assets (246,645)  (6,744,035)  (2,595,606)  (5,159,383)
- other non-current assets (12,192,240) - (12,192,240) -
- trade and other payables 71,534,934 23,279,558 71,528,800 (16,948,056)
- accrued expenses (42,275,371) 4,996,191 (41,344,743) 4,221,884
- other current liabilities 10,970,096 1,012,152 10,197,076 689,307
- cash payment for employee benefits obligation 17 (2,845,354)  (5,042,069)  (2,845,354)  (5,042,069)

Cash generated from operations 570,968,648 1,178,192,247 488,317,279 1,202,755,428
(88,451,891) (150,587,463) (88,448,708) (150,587,463)

482,516,757 1,027,604,784 399,868,571 1,052,167,965

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities
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The notes to the consolidated and company financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.

Univanich




UNIVANICH ANNUAL REPORT 2015

A

5y

L

UIHN gﬁnﬁmﬁﬁuﬂﬁu NA (NHITY)

.I,.' _“. :-"i -‘. . I !
AR T

UNFEUERUAR (719)

dwmTulaugalun 31 Funay w.e. 2558

Hamn

AUMIIEUTIN QWMSRWRNZUSTEN
NW.¢f. 2558 N.¢. 2557 N.¢. 2558 N.¢. 2557
N N N 1IN

NITUARUAAINNINTTHAINY
Ruaasiotiodeiiau e1msuazgUnael
Ruaadodunuiinvesanihdy 11
ﬁumnu%’aﬂin (Lﬁufﬁu) anm
Ruaasunnmasssviuliguun fFumn
Ruaadedulvgauunfiumm
Ruaadigdmiudulifiuszesen
uALIEME0Y
Auansunnmanieiiau o1msuasqinsel
fudadedinihamdoinieains
Fuaaiunnneldaenidesy
AuaagnslFluludanssnaau
NIUARIUAADINADNIIHIANIY

RuaasunnRuddvnnaaiumity

RuanieRudnnnaniumsty 16
AvNIledY
Auiluwaing 20

Ruaagnsld luludenssndamidu
RuaauazNemMIMeuitudnanadgns
RueaauazemMsneui_Iuaaaull
HansznuNNSaTManaoy
Auaauazomsiuhuanduil 6
sremsi hildduan
FoinTosinsuazgUnsallaodalilddseiu 14
Ausedmthadeniosing
iloulfuduning
TouduSudranthonfamisiineadeatiu

I v 04 a v g
LﬂUHumiJiUu‘UEN‘UiHVIEJﬂEJ

(228,371,209)
(16,901,849)
10,000,000
1,188,573
(1,145,000)

4,743,881

36,833,349

(291,702,443)
(5,522,075)
(559,503,644)
1,434,699

5,202,790
(753,077)
44,329,943

(202,545,279)
(16,901,849)
10,000,000
1,188,573
(1,145,000)

4,743,881

36,815,396

(118,811,173)
(5,522,075)
(559,503,644)
1,434,699

(32,980,000)
5,202,790

44,309,197

(193,652,255)

(806,513,807)

(167,844,278)

(665,870,206)

- 169,264,150 ; )
(11,288,007) - ) .
(8,351,668) - ) .
(441,800,000) (517,000,000) (441,800,000) (517,000,000)
(461,439,675) (347,735,850) (441,800,000) (517,000,000)
(172,575,173)  (126,644,873)  (209,775,707) (130,702,241)
697,158,350 823,766,373 679,242,887 809,945,128
(759,411) 36,850 _ _
523,823,766 697,158,350 469,467,180 679,242,887
4,055,375 13,948,851 2,174,889 2,572,216
56,508 10,112,405 - -
29,540,980 28,672,126 - -
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

Statements of Cash Flows (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash payments for purchases of property,
plant and equipment
Cash payments for palm plantation 11
Short-term investments (increase) decrease
Cash receipts from settlement of loans to
contractors
Cash payments of loans to contractors
Cash payments of long-term loan to
a subsidiary
Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Advance payment for purchases of machinery
Interest received
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Cash receipts from loan from financialinstitution
Repayment of loan from financial institution 16
Interest paid
Dividends paid 20
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at opening of the year
Effect of exchange rate
Cash and cash equivalents at closing of the year 6
Non-cash transactions
Purchases of machinery and equipment
not yet paid 14
Advance payment for purchase machinery
transferred to fixed assets
Transfer advance received from related party

Consolidated Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Notes Baht Baht Baht Baht
(228,371,209)  (291,702,443)  (202,545,279) (118,811,173)
(16,901,849) (5,522,075) (16,901,849) (5,522,075)
10,000,000 (559,503,644) 10,000,000 (559,503,644)
1,188,573 1,434,699 1,188,573 1,434,699
(1,145,000) - (1,145,000) -

- - - (32,980,000)

4,743,881 5,202,790 4,743,881 5,202,790

- (753,077) - -

36,833,349 44,329,943 36,815,396 44,309,197
(193,652,255)  (806,513,807)  (167,844,278) (665,870,206)
- 169,264,150 - -
(11,288,007) - - -
(8,351,668) - - -
(441,800,000) (517,000,000)  (441,800,000) (517,000,000)
(461,439,675) (347,735,850)  (441,800,000) (517,000,000)
(172,575,173)  (126,644,873)  (209,775,707) (130,702,241)
697,158,350 823,766,373 679,242,887 809,945,128
(759,411) 36,850 - -
523,823,766 697,158,350 469,467,180 679,242,887
4,055,375 13,948,851 2,174,889 2,572,216
56,508 10,112,405 = =
29,540,980 28,672,126 - -

to ordinary shares of subsidiary

The notes to the consolidated and company financial statements form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

Notes to the Consolidated and Company Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

1 General information

Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited (“the Company”) was formed on 26 December 1995 from the amalgamation,
according to the Civil and Commercial Code, of Hup Huat Palm Oil Industry Company Limited, Siam Palm Oil and Refinery
Industry Company Limited and Thai Oil Palm Industry and Estate Company Limited. The Company has assumed all of
the assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of the companies amalgamated on the date of amalgamation. However, as at
31 December 2015, the names on some legal documents of the three amalgamated companies relating to assets assumed
before the companies amalgamated have not been converted to the name of Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited.
The Company is a public company limited, incorporated and domiciled in Thailand.

The Company’s head office is located at 258 Aoluk-Laemsak Road, Ampur Aoluk, Krabi province.
The Company has 3 branches located at the following addresses:

1) Plai Phraya Branch : 592 Aoluk-Prasaeng Road, Plaiphraya District, Krabi province.
2) Lamthap Branch : 142 Moo 1 Tambol Toongsaitong, Lamthap District, Krabi province.
3) Cha-Uat Branch : 173/2 Moo 6 Tambol Thapraja, Cha-Uat District, Nakhon Sri Thammarat province.

The Company has been listed in the Stock Exchange of Thailand since 25 November 2003. For reporting purposes, the
Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as the Group.

The Group is engaged in oil palm plantations, crushing mills, oil palm research and seed businesses and electric power
plant with methane capture biogas project.

These consolidated and company financial statements were authorised by the Board of Directors on 26 February 2016.

2 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated and company financial statements are
set out below:

2.1  Basis of preparation

The consolidated and company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai
generally accepted accounting principles under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543, being those Thai
Financial Reporting Standards issued under the Accounting Profession Act B.E.2547, and the financial
reporting requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities and Exchange Act.

The consolidated and company financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai generally accepted accounting principles requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated and company financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

An English-language version of the consolidated and company financial statements have been prepared
from the statutory financial statements that are in the Thai-language. In the event of a conflict or a difference
in interpretation between the two languages, the Thai-language statutory financial statements shall prevail.
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2 Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.2 Revised accounting standards, revised financial reporting standards, and related interpretations

a) New financial reporting standards and revised accounting standards, revised financial reporting standards are
effective on 1 January 2015.These standards are relevant to the Group.
TAS 1 (revised 2014)  Presentation of financial statements
TAS 16 (revised 2014)  Property, plant and equipment
TAS 19 (revised 2014) Employee benefits
TAS 27 (revised 2014)  Separate financial statements
TAS 34 (revised 2014) Interim financial reporting

TFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
TFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities
TFRS 13 Fair value measurement

TAS 1 (revised 2014), the main change is that a requirement for entities to group items presented in ‘other
comprehensive income’ (OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The amendments do not address which items are presented in OCI.

TAS 16 (revised 2014) indicates that spare part, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised
as PPE when they meet the definition of PPE. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory. This standard
has no impact to the Group.

TAS 19 (revised 2014), the key changes are (a) actuarial gains and losses are renamed ‘remeasurements’ and
will be recognised immediately in ‘other comprehensive income’ (OCI). Actuarial gains and losses will no

longer be deferred using the corridor approach or recognised in profit or loss; and (b) past-service costs will
be recognised in the period of a plan amendment; unvested benefits will no longer be spread over a future-

service period. This standard has no impact to the Group.

TAS 27 (revised 2014) provide the requirements relating to separate financial statements.

TAS 34 (revised 2014), the key change is the disclosure requirements for operating segment. An entity shall
disclose information of a measure of total assets and liabilities for a particular reportable segment if such
amounts are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker and if there has been a material change
from the amount disclosed in the last annual financial statements for that reportable segment.

TFRS 10 has a single definition of control and supersedes the principles of control and consolidation included
within the original TAS 27, ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’. The standard sets out the
requirements for when an entity should prepare consolidated financial statements, defines the principles

of control, explains how to apply the principles of control and explains the accounting requirements for
preparing consolidated financial statements. The key principle in the new standard is that control exists, and
consolidation is required, only if the investor possesses power over the investee, has exposure to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect
its returns. This standard has no impact to the Group.
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2 Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.2 Revised accounting standards, revised financial reporting standards, and related interpretations (Cont’d)

b)

TFRS 12 require entities to disclose information that helps readers of financial statements to
evaluate the nature of risks and financial effects associated with the entity’s interests in subsidiaries,
associates, joint arrangements and unconsolidated structured entities. This standard has no impact to the Group.

TFRS 13 aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across TFRSs. This standard
has no impact to the Group.

New financial reporting standards, revised accounting standards and revised financial reporting standards are
effective on 1 January 2016.These standards are relevant to the group and are not early adopted

TAS 19 (revised 2015) Employee benefits

TAS 24 (revised 2015) Related party disclosures
TAS 41 Agriculture

TFRS 8 (revised 2015) Operating segments

TAS 19 (revised 2015), ‘Employee benefits’ is amended to apply to contributions from employees or third
parties to defined benefit plans and to clarify the accounting treatment of such contributions. The amendment
distinguishes between contributions that are linked to service only in the period in which they arise and those
linked to service in more than one period.

TAS 24 (revised 2015),’Related party disclosures’ includes as a related party an entity that provides key
management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity (the ‘management
entity’). Disclosure of the amounts charged to the reporting entity is required.

TAS 41, *Agriculture’ requires biological assets including agricultural produce, harvested product of the
entity’s biological assets, to be measured at fair value less cost to sell.

The practical guide on TAS 41 issued by the FAP excludes bearer plant from the scope of TAS 41. The
guide required immature bearer plant and mature bearer plant to be measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, according to TAS 16 (revised 2014) ‘Property, plant and equipment’.
The Group’s management is currently assessing the impact of applying this standard.

TFRS 8 (revised 2015), ‘Operating segments’ requires disclosure of the judgements made by management
in aggregating operating segments. It is also amended to require a reconciliation of segment assets to the
entity’s assets when segment assets are reported to chief operating decision maker.
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2 Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.3 Group Accounting - Investments in subsidiaries

1) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control. The group controls
an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns though its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains or loss on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the company’s separated financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment.

A list of the Group’s subsidiaries are shown in Note 10.
(2) Transactions and non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with equity owners of the Group.
For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(3) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value,
with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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2 Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Thai Baht, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. Conversely, when a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit and loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in profit and loss.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary

economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average exchange
rates; and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the other comprehensive income.

2.5  Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated and Company statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated and Company statement of financial position, bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

2.6 Trade accounts receivable
Trade accounts receivable are carried at the original invoice amount and subsequently measured at the remaining
amount less any allowance for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year-end.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between the carrying amount of the receivable and the amount
expected to be collectible. Bad debts are written-off during the year in which they are identified and recognised
in profit or loss within selling expenses.

LO)
o
(Q\|
[_‘
(04
O
(W
m
v
—]
<
J
Z
z
<
ac
O
7a
<
>
z
3

Univanich




Q‘Ll_ﬂ’]%‘L\‘lu ‘ﬂ

=

2 ylgunansias (9a)

o

2.7 dumauviae
Fudauvdonaasmunamurieyamagnifies1dsy ududnalassiind namuvesdudnimdesnnalagii
Fundeaimin dunuveamsielszneudisnade uasmldeiinmndodlasnsfumsyeduditi gy muuds
dunuasdummiGagliszneudiomingiu Ausmuan mldenannsu wasmlnjolumasdadaiiudiun
nasimsdidiunuaulnd yasgniieg i snannnanindimainzneldvesgsfnindomldneiaiu
welaudiudSagtnufemldhelunmsne nduissniufniyFauienaayamaudui fals ndeulmnd
uazitoununmihfiT Ty

2.8  auhdu
4 v 1 1 v v v s (%4 &' A [ Y a o 1

auhduuanamunamu dunudulngiszneudie nsduduhdsuazmalivanmiunnsliunthaumazmses
’0’ o - 1 +| é v Q. d‘ U L 5 1 1 v a Q-./ v
1 matdgnihdy mssudrisuasnisldie cmLﬂumumuﬂmﬂwmﬂumsﬂanﬂwﬁumme"ln‘lﬁwa NANIUNITZNIAY
ﬂmﬂwwawaﬂ (Falsfe0e naﬂﬂﬂﬂi"mm 2-317) nmﬂumuwumuﬂmu naumwﬂﬂmuwumuﬂwamﬂuﬂuﬂu
minaanathduvdanniignhdulinanan Tﬂﬂ”lcmmffumqmﬂiuiwﬂ snan 20 1l idodasmhomuszznaivae
yosdulmuiineaes uduasunuilasni

2.9 Waw 913 sazaglnsal
ﬁauuaﬂamﬂﬂmnu a1msuazglnialinyacmidienamuinaufounmazay duNUEUIENTINAUNUNNATY
{ { A vy v A A o &
AU NNeIVoINUMIBoAUNSNE T

4 a & o I ' o = v A vy I A A v ¢ A4 A
dunuininavumenasezsvegluyammuiydvesdunindvieiuiuenidudndunindninmuanummnzan We
5 a é’ ! a a ! ! a v o 1 o ! 1 1
funuiuifavutasmaazilszlvniuasgisluemnaauinguiiinuasdunuandnamsa iayamdedath

A

Wode uasszAnyam M yFuoadudungnuasuunuesn dvmiua ey 1az1FINYIBY 9 NGULTENIZIY
Y ' ' ° A 4 A X
Faunuasnandusldelumlsionanuiionayu

L] a

3 ©

R

UNIVANICH ANNUAL REPORT 2015

navliinmsfadudeusna sudeunavesduninddurnalaglditiduase eaanamuudazsiinnaonoigms
TilszlomimlszmnaumsBvesdunindasselii

dulFuilgnau 209
21MIuaz sy 10 -201
ieInsuazgUnsel 5-101
PIUNITIUL 5-101

-~ A O ~ Yo o -
(AIDINNUAT AAAIUAZIATIIFETINIY 5-101

nnausouszeznmNeuldinmuniunazlSuljyadinamieuazergmslissTeslveaduniwdimnzay

TunsdifyamamiyFgeninaminaaineldiuiu yammuiaFegniivaaivhduygaminiaiesldsufuiui
(arnemglsznaaumstula 2.10)

wam lsvisenanuiiiannmssmhenau exmsuazglnssisnnulaoSsuiounndneuunugnsnlasuainms
smhedunindnuyamauiyFuesduning wazasuiindramlsvsenanuaugnilumlsienanu

100

Univanich



2 Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value, cost being determined on weighted average
basis. The cost of purchase comprises both the purchase price and costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the inventory, such as transportation charge. The cost of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net realisable
value is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and
selling expenses. Allowance for diminution in value is made, where necessary, for obsolete, slow-moving, and
defective inventories.

Palm plantation

Palm plantations are stated at cost. All costs comprising mainly palm falling and clearing, land terracing and
drainage, palm planting, weeding and fertilizing involved during the immature period until the palms are ready
for commercial harvesting at approximately 2 - 3 years, are capitalised. The Group amortises palm plantation
cost after the commercial harvesting, using a straight-line basis, over a period of 20 years or over the remaining
period of the concessions to which it relates, whichever is shorter.

Property, plant and equipment
Land is stated at cost. Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Land improvement 20 years
Buildings and plants 10 - 20 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-10 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The asset’s carrying amount is written-down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.10).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within ‘Other (losses)/gains - net’ in profit or loss.
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2 Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.10

211

2.12

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount which is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Leases - when a Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of property, plant or equipment where the Company
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other
long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as
to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property,
plant or equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter period of the useful life of the asset
and the lease term.

Borrowings
Borrowings and debentures are recognised initially at the fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
and debentures are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective yield method; any difference between
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it
is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent that there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which
it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of reporting date.
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2 Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.13

2.14

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period in the country where the Group’s operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising from differences
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there
is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2 Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.15

Employee benefits

The Group has post-employment benefits both defined contribution plans and defined benefit. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically defined benefit plans define an
amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and compensation.

* Defined contribution plans

Provident fund

The Group pays contributions to a separate fund which is maanged by an external fund manager in accordance
with the provident fund Act. B.E. 2530. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

* Defined benefit plans

2.16

2.17

Retirement benefit
The Group has employee benefit schemes to provide benefit to the employees who resign or retire from the
Company after working for the Company for the period or at age as specified in the employee benefit schemes.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit retirement plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows using [market yield of high-quality corporate bonds /market yield of government bonds]
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related retirement liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged
or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Other provisions

Provisions, excluding the provisions for employee benefits, are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sales of goods in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of discount. Revenue from sales of goods is recognised
when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer.

Other revenues are generally recognised on the accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.
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2 Accounting policies (Cont’d)

2.18 Dividend distribution
Dividends payable are not accounted for until they have been approved at the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders or by the Board of Directors meeting in case of interim dividend declaration.

2.19  Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as Managing Director that makes strategic decisions.

3 Risk management

3.1  Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an appropriate
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new share.

3.2 Financial risk management
3.2.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in debt and equity
market prices, foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Group. The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as foreign currency forward
contracts to hedge certain exposures.

Risk management is carried out by management in accordance with policies approved by the Board of Directors.
The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and investing excess liquidity.

a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk since certain sales are entered into in foreign currencies.

The Group minimises the potential adverse effects of fluctuation currency values on the financial performance
of the Group by using forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge all such export sales currency risk.

Foreign currency forward contracts protect the Group from movements in exchange rates by establishing the

rate at which a foreign currency accounts receivable will be realised. The foreign currency forward contracts

are not separately recognised in the financial statements at fair value.
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3 Risk management (Cont’d)

3.2
321

3.2.2

3.23

Financial risk management (Cont’d)
Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

b) Credit risk

The Group’s exposure to credit risk consists of deposits at financial institutions and trade receivables.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk with respect to receivables from customers. However, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The Group has no significant risk with financial institutions since cash is placed with reputable financial institutions.

) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions.

Accounting for derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
The Group is party to derivative financial instruments, which mainly comprise foreign currency forward contracts.
Such instruments are not recognised in the financial statements on inception.

Foreign currency forward contracts protect the Group from movements in exchange rates by establishing the
rate at which a foreign currency asset will be realised or a foreign currency liability will be settled. Any increase
or decrease in the amount required to realise the asset or settle the liability is offset by a corresponding movement
in the value of the foreign currency forward contract. The gains and losses on the derivative instruments and the
underlying financial asset or liability are therefore offset for financial reporting purposes and are not recognised
in the financial statements.

Fair value estimation

Financial assets carried in the statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and long-term loans. Financial liabilities carried in the statement of financial position include trade
and other payables, income tax payable, accrued expenses and long-term loans.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values. Long-term loans from financial institutions with interest charged at the floating
rates, the carrying amount of such loans approximates the fair value.

The fair value of publicly traded derivatives is based on quoted market prices at the financial position date. The
fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined by the market rate of each agreement which is
calculated by financial institutions dealing with the Group at the financial position date.

Analyses financial instruments disclosed at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined
as follows:

* Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

» Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).
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4 Critical accounting estimates, assumption and judgements

Estimates, assumption and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1  Impairment of receivable
The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect impairment of trade receivables relating to
estimated losses resulting from the inability of customers to make required payments. The allowance for doubtful
accounts is significantly impacted by the Group’s assessment of future cash flows, such assessment being based
on consideration of historical collection experience, known and identified instances of default and consideration
of market trends.

4.2  Employee benefit obligation
The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial
basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions
include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will have an impact on the carrying amount of pension
obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should
be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension
obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group considers the market yield of government
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions. Additional
information is disclosed in Note 17.

4.3 Recognition of deferred tax assets
The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is probably that sufficient taxable profits will be
available in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted. The Group has
determined the future taxable profits by referencing to the latest available financial forecasts. The recognition,
therefore, involves judgement regarding the future financial performance of the Group in which the deferred tax
assets have been recognised.
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5 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as Managing Director that makes strategic decisions
which is reported as two operating segments information as follows:

1. Oil palm plantations, palm fruit processing, oil palm seed and seedling business
2. Electric power plant with methane capture biogas project

There was no material activity pertaining to the electric power plant with methane capture biogas project.

The Group’s total sales and total assets of the electric power plant with methane capture biogas project represented
2.01% and 2.09% of the total balance in the consolidated financial statement, respectively. Therefore, the internal
reporting is reported as one operating segment information.

The Group operated mainly in Thailand. It’s total assets and revenue in Philippines are not material, therefore
geographic information has not been presented.

6 Cash and cash equivalents

Consolidated Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Cash on hand 70,415 116,716 31,960 101,960
Cheque on hand 90,046,006 - 90,046,006 -
Deposits at banks - current accounts 9,363,286 8,620,961 9,363,286 8,620,961

244,446,494 388,648,162 190,128,363 370,747,455
179,897,565 299,772,511 179,897,565 299,772,511
523,823,766 697,158,350 469,467,180 679,242,887

Deposits at banks - saving accounts
Investment in bonds

Total cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2015, saving accounts bear interest at the rates of 0.125% - 1.10% per annum (2014: 0.125% -
1.15% per annum).

As at 31 December 2015, investment in bonds represent investment in Bank of Thailand bonds with maturity of twenty-
three-day term (2014: twenty-nine-day term) and carried yield at the rate of 1.485% per annum (2014: 1.98% per annum).

7 Short-term investments

As at 31 December 2015, short-term investments represented fixed deposits with banks with maturity of
four-month to five-month terms (2014: four-month to seven-month terms), and carried interest at the rate 1.45%
- 2.00% per annum (2014: 2.40% - 3.10% per annum).
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QUMSHUTIN QWUMSRWRNIZUTEN

N.f. 2558 N.f. 2557 N.A. 2558 NW.¢. 2557
1IN 1M 1N 1IN
125,350,850 79,264,694 122,773,600 73,416,195
(11,900,000) (11,900,000) (11,900,000) (11,900,000)
113,450,850 67,364,694 110,873,600 61,516,195
- - 6,104,508 1,945,375

6,563,615 7,570,428 6,563,615 7,570,428
4,097,573 4,085,839 3,800,226 3,730,205
8,119,564 12,551,431 7,457,123 10,955,965
132,231,602 91,572,392 134,799,072 85,718,168

¥

JUMSHUTIN WMSRWRNZUTEN

N.¢. 2558 N.f. 2557 NW.A. 2558 N.¢. 2557
N N N N
108,004,359 67,392,082 105,427,109 61,543,583
5,473,886 - 5,473,886 -
11,872,605 11,872,612 11,872,605 11,872,612
125,350,850 79,264,694 122,773,600 73,416,195
(11,900,000) (11,900,000) (11,900,000) (11,900,000)
113,450,850 67,364,694 110,873,600 61,516,195
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8 Trade and other receivables, net

Trade receivables

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts
Trade receivables, net

Advance to related parties (Note 28 b)
Accrued interest income

Advance payment

Prepayments

Total trade and other receivables, net

b -

g -

Al STATEMENTS

™=

(2

Trade receivable as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 can be analysed by their age as follows:

Outstanding up to 3 months

3 - 6 months

6 - 12 months

Over 12 months

Total

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Trade receivables, net

Consolidated Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Baht Baht Baht Baht
125,350,850 79,264,694 122,773,600 73,416,195
(11,900,000) (11,900,000) (11,900,000) (11,900,000)
113,450,850 67,364,694 110,873,600 61,516,195
- - 6,104,508 1,945,375

6,563,615 7,570,428 6,563,615 7,570,428
4,097,573 4,085,839 3,800,226 3,730,205
8,119,564 12,551,431 7,457,123 10,955,965
132,231,602 91,572,392 134,799,072 85,718,168
Consolidated Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Baht Baht Baht Baht
108,004,359 67,392,082 105,427,109 61,543,583
5,473,886 - 5,473,886 -
11,872,605 11,872,612 11,872,605 11,872,612
125,350,850 79,264,694 122,773,600 73,416,195
(11,900,000)  (11,900,000)  (11,900,000) (11,900,000)
113,450,850 67,364,694 110,873,600 61,516,195

Univanich
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nathdy 8,248 - - -
Thiuthdy 146,079,199 158,163,902 134,651,853 106,487,416
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o ua:i?aqﬁa‘lﬂ 33,456,393 27,451,579 33,456,393 27,451,579
214,157,577 220,094,759 202,288,355 166,505,573
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izma 530D NusEI Jowaz Sosny Souaz nm
Univanich Agribusiness ~ Hautud auly 9,000,000 w/ls 100 100 6,480,000
Corporation Vitnau
U3HNGo8v04 Univanich
Agribusiness Corporation
Univanich Carmen Palm Oil
Corporation Wavtud TR0 246,000,000 Wl 51 51 49
WamAthdy (WA, 2557 ;
162,360,000 i)
6,480,000
manldsuwadluiuasulusiindesamanTnneilgaad
IUNMIRURIIZVIEN
éim%’u?]éluqﬂﬁ'uﬁ 31 funny w.a. 2558  W.4. 2557
IRV} IRV
NN Y AU 6,480,000 6,480,000
Hazauluiimdey - -
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9 Inventories, net
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Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Palm fruit 8,248 - - -
Palm oil 146,079,199 158,163,902 134,651,853 106,487,416
By products from palm oil production 7,110,321 8,950,646 6,676,693 7,037,946
Palm seeds and seedlings 27,503,416 25,528,632 27,503,416 25,528,632
Fertilizers and general supplies 33,456,393 27,451,579 33,456,393 27,451,579
214,157,577 220,094,759 202,288,355 166,505,573
Less Allowance for obsolescence of general supplies ~ (2,400,000)  (2,400,000) ~ (2,400,000)  (2,400,000)
Total inventories, net 211,757,577 217,694,759 199,888,355 164,105,573
The group had the following subsidiaries at 31 December 2015
Proportion Proportion  Proportion of
of ordinary of ordinary  shares held by
shares directly shares held by non-controlling
Paid-up held by parent the group interests Cost value
Countries Business capital (%) (%) (%) Baht
Univanich Agribusiness  Philippines  investment 9,000,000 100 100 - 6,480,000
Corporation holding Pesos
Subsidiary of Univanich
Agribusiness Corporation
Univanich Carmen
Palm Qil Corporation Philippines Palmoil ~ 246,000,000 51 51 49 -
crushing Pesos
mill (2014:
162,360,000
Pesos) 6,480,000
A summary of movements in investment in subsidiaries is as follows:
Company
2015 2014
For the year ended 31 December Baht Baht
Opening net book value 6,480,000 6,480,000
Payment for shares in subsidiaries
Closing net book value 6,480,000 6,480,000

Univanich

LO)
o
(Q\|
[_.
Y.
O
(W
m
v
—]
<
J
Z
z
<
ac
O
7a
<
>
z
3




10 Quasnuluystngdes (de)

diaTuil 13 wguniay w.a. 2558 NszauanznIsuN19U3EM Univanich Carmen Palm Oil Corporation 1diFen
MyzAuaIILIY 83,640,000 Hu yamduaz 1w/l Tavudsmieduiludadiuiosas 51 vemuaanziiou
udwnutunsau 42.7 dunlls

utndesaanandreduldnueglunmsdarhaumstunuveanguistm dadiuvesantlunseonidusluiiindes

]
A

nielasusEnlvgliuandnnndadiunderfualy

veaTwvesdiuldidenhidsnnugulusznindisiuiu 71,178,873 uvm Muves Univanich Carmen Palm
. . = 1A o o 1 ' a v
0il Corporation &3 hifimszdfgydenguisim

UNIVANICH ANNUAL REPORT 2015

120

Univanich



10

Investment in subsidiaries (Cont’d)

The Board of Directors” meeting of Univanich Carmen Palm Qil Corporation on 13 May 2015 called for the
payment for 83,640,000 common shares at Peso 1 per share. The Company holds 51% of Univanich Carmen
Palm Oil Corporation’s authorised share capital totalling Pesos 42.7 million.

All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation. The proportion of the voting rights in the
subsidiary undertakings held directly by the parent company do not differ from the proportion of ordinary
shares held.

The total non-controlling interest for the year is Baht 71,178,873 is attributed to Univanich Carmen Palm Oil
Corporation that are not material to the group.

Univanich
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AU 390,711,196 10,467,880 401,179,076
Mn - MAad gz (277,903,595) - (277,903,595)
MUY FINT 112,807,601 10,467,880 123,275,481
ﬁm%’u?]éuqﬂﬁ'uﬁ 31 SUNAN W.A. 2557
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AMANITIUIY (11,047,617) - (11,047,617)
nmauliyrgnilaned 113,315,574 4,434,365 117,749,939
a Juit 31 fumau wa. 2557
NAMY 402,266,786 4,434,365 406,701,151
i MAAInedzay (288,951,212) - (288,951,212)
MUY FND 113,315,574 4,434,365 117,749,939
t‘im%'u?]?qiluqﬂi'uﬁ 31 SUNAN W.A. 2558
Ml Fgnsaul 113,315,574 4,434,365 117,749,939
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11 Palm plantation, net

At 1 January 2014
Cost
Less Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Opening net book amount

Additions

Transfer in (out)

Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2014

Cost

Less Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount

Additions

Transfer in (out)

Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2015
Cost
Less Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Consolidated and Company

Palm plantation ~ Immature palms Total
Baht Baht Baht
390,711,196 10,467,880 401,179,076
(277,903,595) - (277,903,595)
112,807,601 10,467,880 123,275,481
112,807,601 10,467,880 123,275,481

- 5,522,075 5,522,075

11,555,590 (11,555,590) -
(11,047,617) - (11,047,617)
113,315,574 4,434,365 117,749,939
402,266,786 4,434,365 406,701,151
(288,951,212) - (288,951,212)
113,315,574 4,434,365 117,749,939
113,315,574 4,434,365 117,749,939

- 16,901,849 16,901,849

2,717,143 (2,717,143) -
(11,612,497) - (11,612,497)
104,420,220 18,619,071 123,039,291
404,983,929 18,619,071 423,603,000
(300,563,709) - (300,563,709)
104,420,220 18,619,071 123,039,291
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11 Palm plantation, net (Cont’d)

The Company’s plantation has been made on the Company’s own land, concession land and lease land. The land
concessions were issued by the Government for development of oil palm plantation. Details of land under concession
and under operating lease agreements as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Area per Planted

Name of estate Type Terms contract (Rai) area (Rai)

TOPI Concession Renewed for 30 years 8,250 8,250
from 19 November 1993

TOPI Lease Leased from Co-operative 2,500 2,500

Promotion Department for 30 years,
at the rates of Baht 100 to Baht 300
per Rai per year, commencing on
27 April 1994

On 22 April 1983, Univanich Palm Qil Public Company Limited’s predecessor was granted a concession for the
development of an oil palm plantation on 20,000 rai in Krabi Province. The concession known as the Chean Vanich
Concession was for thirty years, from 22 April 1983 to 21 April 2013.

On 1 July 2010, the Company commenced the due process to renew the concession on 10,849 rai located in Tambon
Plaipraya, Plaipraya District and Tambun Klongya, Aoluk District of Krabi Province. Although the due process for this
renewal was completed by 28 March 2012, the final approval by Government authority was delayed. Therefore, on 7
March 2013 the Company submitted a petition to the Administrative Court in Nakhon Sri Thammarat seeking a court
order that the renewal application on 10,849 rai should be endorsed by the responsible Government authorities. The
Administrative Court accepted the Company’s petition which is now under consideration by the Court.

On 30 August 2013, the Government Forestry Department instructed the Company to cease operations within the Chean
Vanich concession area. Therefore, on 20 December 2013 the Company submitted another petition to the Administrative
Court in Nakhon Sri Thammarat seeking damage compensation for this unlawful restriction of the Company’s activities
in that area and appealing the Ministry of Natural Resources’ claim that oil palm fruit from the Chean Vanich concession
area is a natural forest product liable for forest royalty and maintenance fees. The Administrative Court accepted that
second petition which is now under consideration by the Court.

LO)
o
(Q\|
[_.
Y.
O
(W
m
v
—]
<
J
Z
z
<
ac
O
7a
<
>
z
3




UNIVANICH ANNUAL REPORT 2015

126

11 aruthaw - ans (o)

fuil 11 fgueu wa. 2557 nauthlimeldnssnnaminennsuasdaunadondeyanalivisndnseunsesiuidinmy
wazannsafunveath (vahduhii) luiuieandifuszeznm 19 uazsEn ldsumsdemisdeoyanamsiiumyes
thanafadoTuil 11 fiquiou w.e. 2558 liisimdiasennsofursahdnhiuluiuidinmusnudsmieduderies
doll o Yuit 31 Sumny wA. 2558 n%ﬁw"lﬁ%’mﬁmﬂummﬂwanua:mﬁwgqﬂﬂﬂuﬁnﬂuﬁi’mmﬁuﬁgﬁu 11,587,649
v dwurathduivsim el dnniuiinmuaudemis Fsunududndnusimldsuindhmmingl
wmpududuluumsiuil desnnuisnezaunsadoniuldmameviamaimfimnmauivovoaisndeimie
smanaauaziiihpihitlddudemaiiioTui 20 funay wa. 2556 deanniadinguyanafidangrnodunyninuas
snaeudanathduluiuidulghuwadinlmumudssnimildaunuvesssnaldausodh i i ldaudailagiu

ofls U3t ldnuenmsiudnlussnamsmidunsmedungmnedhaduluiuddmunuiemiy Tasnunssn
‘rﬁ’aé’ﬂiaummé&qLauﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂ"lﬁc?}laﬁaumﬁ?u"lﬁﬂiaumaqﬁ’uﬁﬂﬁzmm 15,51013 ﬁﬂu‘ﬁﬂgﬁmaﬁﬁu%zﬂizﬂ’lﬂT’iﬂi&ﬂ
WA, 2497 wruilssnefiauudnstansuiiauldinefadnsdeumuiniveadaseanses uazfindszlomlfundeuudaly
w.fl. 2520 Aeuivedmassmaihuwathanuuand “Dnlawaasanszn” il wa. 2526 Snfuisniadudians
aseuATBalagoIfue IS MszuangruusuiauasAisdaT 1367 uaznan 1336 waznrdvaniamwuilizana
MINGTAY W.A1. 2497 ANAT 4 UAZINATI 27 A3 ﬂ%ﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂizﬁ’j’nmiﬁ”lLﬁuﬂ’li‘UﬂE}ﬂﬂlﬂﬂﬁ?i%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂﬂmﬁ’miﬁfmi
voanauitau uagldiumlesdornatnaseaunsaissumy welinsuiiauhmseenenasamsnauliudusinluidudandn

Univanich



: W, =
-

b -

INANCIAL STATEVENTS

B

O R

11 Palm plantation, net (Cont’d)

On 11 June 2014, the Forestry Department of the Ministry of Natural Resources and Environment issued an annual
royalty permit to the Company allowing the harvest of Forest Product (Oil Palm) within the concession area. This
annual royalty permit was renewed for another year on 11 July 2015, permitting the Company to continue operations
within the Chean Vanich concession area. As at 31 December 2015, the Company has paid royalty and maintenance fees
totaling Baht 11,587,649 for oil palm fruit harvested from the Chean Vanich concession area which they are recorded as
non-current assets in these financial statements. This amount will be reclaimed by the Company if the Administrative
Court rules in favour of the Company’s Petition regarding royalty and maintenance fees, submitted to the Court on 20
December 2013. lllegal squatters and organized fruit theft gangs have since occupied large parts of the Chean Vanich
concession area from which areas the company’s employees are currently excluded.

Additional documents disclosed during the above legal actions concerning renewal of the Chean Vanich concession
reveal that the Company or its predecessors, from whom the Company purchased the land, had occupied approximately
15,510 rai of this area before the Land Laws introduced in 1954. Survey maps reveal that the Government’s Land
Department “Walking Survey” had investigated and surveyed those occupied areas in 1977, before the announcement
of the National Forest Reserve “Pa Plai Klong Phraya” in 1983. The Company claims ownership rights over that land
by virtue of the Civil and Commercial Code, Section 1367 and Section 1336, having rights under the Land Code 2497,
Section 4 and Section 27tri. Therefore the Company has applied to the Land Department to receive land titles over
several blocks of this previously occupied and utilized the land. The Company has also submitted this matter to the
Administrative Court in Nakhon Sri Thammart seeking the Court’s instruction to the Land Department to issue land
ownership titles to the Company in those areas.
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Z] 6,138,653 4,458,159 - -
% miduldsemsdnifeyd - qnd 76,008,859 65,156,011 53,643,141 57,983,541
Z
<
5 semandeulmvesmiiuldsomadatiyFiaail
v IUMI[UIIY UNMIRURNIZUTEN
§ W.A. 2558 WA, 2557 WA, 2558 WA, 2557
ya um um UM um
w1 unnaw 65,156,011 58,784,788 57,983,541 57,328,220
Lﬁu / (@a) Gluﬁﬂsw"sammnu
(Mnomave 24) 10,852,848 8,060,948 (4,340,400) 2,345,046
iy / (aq) Gluﬁw"lsmm;mﬁma‘%a?;u
(vinevgle 24) - (1,689,725) - (1,689,725)
o Sudi 31 Suna 76,008,859 65,156,011 53,643,141 57,983,541
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13 Deferred income taxes, net

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 comprise the following:

Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Deferred income tax assets:
Deferred income tax asset to be
recovered within 12 months 4,626,999 3,740,472 3,602,380 3,740,472
Deferred income tax asset to be
recovered after 12 months 77,520,513 65,873,698 50,040,761 54,243,069
82,147,512 69,614,170 53,643,141 57,983,541
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Deferred income tax liabilities
to be settled within 12 months 985,691 227,168 - -
Deferred income tax liabilities
to be settled after 12 months 5,152,962 4,230,991 - -
6,138,653 4,458,159 - -
Deferred income taxes, net 76,008,859 65,156,011 53,643,141 57,983,541

The gross movement and the deferred income tax account is as follows:

Consolidated Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Baht Baht Baht Baht

At 1 January 65,156,011 58,784,788 57,983,541 57,328,220
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss

(Note 24) 10,852,848 8,060,948 (4,340,400) 2,345,046

Charged/(credited) to other
comprehensive income (Note 24) - (1,689,725) - (1,689,725)
At 31 December 76,008,859 65,156,011 53,643,141 57,983,541
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o

Hemanaoulnvesdunsneg uazvila

o

umiRuldsemsiaaiaail

138

JUNTHUTIN
a Jui iias/@a) /o) luin’ls a Jui
1 ¥N1AN mlsnse ﬂ%mmgu 31 Sunau
W.fl 2557 ANy a3 N.fl. 2557
UIN UIN UIN YN
a v d A A v v o A
ﬂuﬂiWﬂﬂ1HNu‘lﬂ‘iﬂﬂ1iﬁﬂUﬂJ‘U
M3zyniumalszlomindnau 25,142,375 3,841,610 (1,689,725) 27,294,260
o Maashedunsnd luimau 12,846,936 (1,459,879) - 11,387,057
) e e
Al Maanmiheauthdy 11,902,394 (795,039) - 11,107,355
E PMAYUGNTNIINE 1,442,776 10,117,287 ; 11,560,063
8 duq 7,450,307 815,128 ; 8,265,435
g 58,784,788 12,519,107 (1,689,725) 69,614,170
. wuaumituldsemadaiyy
g Auiiaussaanth ; 4,319,527 ; 4,319,527
% fuq ; 138,632 ; 138,632
< - 4,458,159 - 4,458,159
5 Funswimiauldse
v MIAATYY - qNT 58,784,788 8,060,948 (1,689,725) 65,156,011
<C
>
Z. JUNSHUTIN
> o A A A ° o A
M Jun ia/(an)lu wis/(aa)lumls M dun
1 uR31AN mlsnse HIounANY 31 suNau
. 2558 AN BifolGEE) n.f. 2558
UIN UIN UIN UIMN
dunsndmituldsemsantin®
M3zyniumalszlominnnu 27,294,260 3,286,079 - 30,580,339
Maasvhedunsnd lulimau 11,387,057 (1,459,879) - 9,927,178
maaniheaIudy 11,107,355 (677,415) - 10,429,940
PANUNTNNH 11,560,063 14,285,014 - 25,845,077
9 8,265,435 (2,900,457) - 5,364,978
69,614,170 12,533,342 : 82,147,512
cqilca IS v v v A
ﬁﬂﬁuﬂ1ﬂ!ﬂu‘lﬂiﬂﬂ1iﬂﬂ illu‘]f
Aahiausearamth 4,319,527 90,958 - 4,410,485
duq 138,632 1,589,536 : 1,728,168
4.458.159 1,680,494 : 6.138.653
FunswimiRuldse
MIAATYY - qnd 65,156,011 10,852,848 - 76,008,859
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13 Deferred tax assets (Cont’d)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Employee benefits obligation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation charge of palm plantation
Tax losses carried forward

Others

Deferred tax liabilities
Prepayment of land rent
Others

Deferred income taxes, net

Deferred tax assets

Employee benefits obligation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation charge of palm plantation
Tax losses carried forward

Others

Deferred tax liabilities
Prepayment of land rent

Others

Deferred income taxes, net

Consolidated

Charged/credited to
As at Charged/ Statement of As at
1 January credited to comprehensive 31 December
2014 Profit or loss income 2014
Baht Baht Baht Baht
25,142,375 3,841,610 (1,689,725) 27,294,260
12,846,936 (1,459,879) - 11,387,057
11,902,394 (795,039) - 11,107,355
1,442,776 10,117,287 - 11,560,063
7,450,307 815,128 - 8,265,435
58,784,788 12,519,107 (1,689,725) 69,614,170
- 4,319,527 - 4,319,527
- 138,632 - 138,632
) 4,458,159 - 4,458,159
58,784,788 8,060,948 (1,689,725) 65,156,011
Consolidated

Charged/credited to
As at Charged/ Statement of As at
1 January credited to comprehensive 31 December
2015 Profit or loss income 2015
Baht Baht Baht Baht
27,294,260 3,286,079 - 30,580,339
11,387,057 (1,459,879) - 9,927,178
11,107,355 (677,415) - 10,429,940
11,560,063 14,285,014 - 25,845,077
8,265,435 (2,900,457) - 5,364,978
69,614,170 12,533,342 - 82,147,512
4,319,527 90,958 - 4,410,485
138,632 1,589,536 - 1,728,168
4,458,159 1,680,494 - 6,138,653
65,156,011 10,852,848 - 76,008,859
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JUMSRWRNIZUITEN

a Sl i/ @)l iiay/@a)luin’ls a Jui

1 uNI1AN mlsnse ﬂ%mmnu 31 sunau
WA 2557 vNANY BiloIGED) N.f1. 2557
1IN 1IN STRY) 1IN
25,142,375 3,841,610 (1,689,725) 27,294,260
12,846,936 (1,459,879) - 11,387,057
11,902,394 (795,039) - 11,107,355
7,436,515 758,354 - 8,194,869
57,328,220 2,345,046 (1,689,725) 57,983,541
JUMSRURNIZUTEN

o 4 2 2 . o A

a Jun a/(an)lu wis/(aa)lumls a un

1 ¥n51AN mlsvse WIeunanNy 31 sunaw
.4 2558 vanNY 1Waase n.f. 2558
TRt 1IN STAL 1IN
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13 Deferred tax assets (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets

Employee benefits obligation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation charge of palm plantation
Others

Deferred income taxes

Deferred tax assets

Employee benefits obligation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation charge of palm plantation
Others

Deferred income taxes

Company

Charged/credited to
As at Charged/ Statement of As at
1 January credited to comprehensive 31 December
2014 Profit or loss income 2014
Baht Baht Baht Baht
25,142,375 3,841,610 (1,689,725) 27,294,260
12,846,936 (1,459,879) - 11,387,057
11,902,394 (795,039) - 11,107,355
7,436,515 758,354 - 8,194,869
57,328,220 2,345,046 (1,689,725) 57,983,541
Company

Charged/credited to
As at Charged/ Statement of As at
1 January credited to comprehensive 31 December
2015 Profit or loss income 2015
Baht Baht Baht Baht
27,294,260 3,286,079 - 30,580,339
11,387,057 (1,459,879) - 9,927,178
11,107,355 (677,415) - 10,429,940
8,194,869 (5,489,185) - 2,705,684
57,983,541 (4,340,400) - 53,643,141

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward only to the extent that realisation of the related

tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
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14 HUMIANAZIDIHUDY

JUMSHUTIN JUMSEUAMIZYIEN

W.a. 2558 WAl 2557 N.A. 2558 WAl 2557

U UIn U U

s 96,548,084 21,997,812 96,547,861 19,721,663

Fwiinisd - fderhdw 1,552,001 3,700,970 1,515,751 3,700,970

dntimdeaunindons 4,055,375 13,948,851 2,174,889 2572216
Fmiitemsiineadeatiu

(vnemgde 28 ¥) - 30,975,500 - -

AusvamhIngnm 10,381,527 14,000,137 10,381,527 14,000,137

Bu 9 5,756,135 1,392,025 1,528,191 1,021,760

g wiimIduazviioy 118,293,122 86,015,295 112,148,219 41,016,746

IUMINUTIN IUMIRUDWIZUIHN

n.a. 2558 n.A. 2557 W.a. 2558 n.A. 2557

UIn UIN UIn UIN

AVUAIA1NTY 3,612,365 1,514,172 3,612,365 1,514,172

MIETumINAaTY 7,507,425 7,828,684 7,507,425 7,828,684

oo funinnuiee 10,059,254 42,406,269 10,059,254 42,406,269

aeniioAeioufaunI Gy 7,935,845 6,615,477 = =

Buq 8,229,437 18,805,588 6,023,449 16,798,111

Humldeiniie 37,344,326 77,170,190 27,202,493 68,547,236
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14 Trade and other payables

Consolidated Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Account payables 96,548,084 21,997,812 96,547,861 19,721,663
Account payables for purchase

of palm fruits 1,552,001 3,700,970 1,515,751 3,700,970
Account payables for purchase

of fixed assets 4,055,375 13,948,851 2,174,889 2,572,216

Amount due from a related party

(Note 28 b) - 30,975,500 - -

Deposit from customers 10,381,527 14,000,137 10,381,527 14,000,137

Others 5,756,135 1,392,025 1,528,191 1,021,760

Total trade and other payables 118,293,122 86,015,295 112,148,219 41,016,746

Consolidated Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Accrued transportation expenses 3,612,365 1,514,172 3,612,365 1,514,172

Accrued contractors cost 7,507,425 7,828,684 7,507,425 7,828,684

Accrued employee expenses 10,059,254 42,406,269 10,059,254 42,406,269

Interests payable to a financial institution 7,935,845 6,615,477 - -

Others 8,229,437 18,805,588 6,023,449 16,798,111

Total accrued expenses 37,344,326 77,170,190 27,202,493 68,547,236

LO)
o
(Q\|
[_‘
(04
O
(W
m
v
—]
<
J
Z
z
<
ac
O
7a
<
>
z
3

Univanich




UNIVANICH ANNUAL REPORT 2015

144

16 ﬁuﬁﬁmwzmmmamﬁun 519

nmmaa"lﬂmammmunﬂm’mﬁmmi Land Bank of the Phlhpplnes (LBP) mmum 21 fiwnay w.e. 2557 Wudwu
Qu 233 ,500,000 l‘lﬂ“]f Lwaumﬂﬁfﬂuﬂﬁnaaﬂﬂsmuumuﬂmn Llﬁucﬁﬂlﬂiﬂiiﬂﬂi Nuﬂfl‘JJulJﬂiﬁuﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁwﬂhmmﬁlu 10 ﬂ
T@ﬂ"lmmlnnumiﬂmuNu@uuamanmaiuﬂuanuummummammw ﬁﬁﬂﬁ]'lﬂuuﬁ]uﬂ'lﬂ'liﬂf'liuﬂUGl'JﬂEl’él@]'V]L‘ﬂ'lﬂ‘LW}ﬂ 3 L@]E]“Ll
| (% & a YA = ' 1 1Y 1Y 1A a v g k4 [
fluszeznm 36 na daneenitsvesiuginezwasullluudazlnsinaudazlitesnifosaz 6 dell usimdosmiiziu
Rudtuitlagldnfuvosfamsfitierdesnu

¥
~

nmadsumladlutudivszezenainaniiumstuanninimnzildaail

JUMIRUTIY
N.A. 2558 N.f. 2557
M N

ﬁ°m%’u’i’]§ugm5’uﬁ 31 $uNAN
gannuvneaull 172,276,300 -
ﬁ'ﬁmﬁm:wﬁnﬂ - 169,264,150
NoAuRUGIEIND (11,288,007) -
mmnuﬁé’a"bj%’uimné’mmaﬂLﬂ‘é"ﬂu 7,059,507 3,012,150
gaanaaotaisl 168,047,800 172,276,300

o A ) o A A va o A K % A wA ' Av Ay
2N 31 FuNAY WA 2558 9ANABNWLENUTINNILAYAININININYBIRUYINIZEZ81IVDINGNLTEN AD Favas 4.85
@01 (W.fl. 2557 : 598y 4.85 Aol

szgznAATUMrUAYeIRUGTuIzezsINNENTUMIRY diaade il

JUMIEUIIN
W.f1. 2558 W.A. 2557
U UIn
AU BNz INaNTUNIEY

- asumvuatsznolu 11 16,230,097 11,067,527
- asummuathsziundt 17 udlidnu 5 1) 75,619,871 68,337,215
- ATUMUUATIIZIAUNT 5 1) 76,197,832 92,871,558
NURUGINTEEzENNNTTUNIRY 168,047,800 172,276,300

fufiuszssonnnaniuduiyamnaauiydlediRstuyamgismuiemnnisanaoniisassdn
JUMSHUTIN JUMIRURNIZYSEN
n.f1. 2558 A1, 2557 W.f1. 2558 n.f1. 2557
U U U U
AWUAAIFIUENNNTRY 153,456,231 138,396,871 153,456,231 138,396,871
Ml alsslosintinanudmsul 17,904,714 16,922,631 17,904,714 16,922,631
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16 Long term loan from financial institution

On 21 March 2014, the subsidiary availed an interest-bearing loan with Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP) amounting
to Pesos 233,500,000. The proceeds of the loan were used to finance the construction of a palm oil mill and fabrication
of certain machinery. The interest-bearing loan is payable for ten years with one year grace period on principal and
bears interest at a variable rate subject to quarterly repricing, but not lower than 6.00% per annum which is payable in
36 equal quarterly payments. The loan with LBP is secured by parcels of land owned by a related party under common
ownership.

The movement in long-term loan from financial institutions is as follows:

Consolidated

2015 2014

Baht Baht
For the year ended 31 December
Opening balance 172,276,300 -
Addition - 169,264,150
Repayment (11,288,007) -
Unrealised loss on exchange rate 7,059,507 3,012,150
Closing balance 168,047,800 172,276,300

As at 31 December 2015, the weighted average effective interest rate of the long-term loans of the Group was
approximately 4.85% per annum (2014: 4.85% per annum).
Consolidated

2015 2014
Baht Baht
Long-term loan from financial institution

- Within 1 year 16,230,097 11,067,527

- Later than 1 year but no later than 5 years 75,619,871 68,337,215
- Later than 5 years 76,197,832 92,871,558 L0
Total long-term loan from financial institution 168,047,800 172,276,300 §]
-
The carrying amounts of long-term loans from financial institution approximate their fair values due to floating interest %
rates. (W
(]
.
,
-
Consolidated Company %
2015 2014 2015 2014 <
Baht Baht Baht Baht T
Statement of financial position 153,456,231 138,396,871 153,456,231 138,396,871 %
Expenses of employee benefits <
for the year 17,904,714 16,922,631 17,904,714 16,922,631 %
9
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nemandeulivesmszyniunalszlvmindimualiszniedlism

¥

QUNTHUTIN JUMSRWANIZUITEN
N.f. 2558 N.¢. 2557 N.f. 2558 N.¢. 2557
STRY ) VN N STRL !
[l fuﬁ 1 unsAu 138,396,871 134,964,932 138,396,871 134,964,932
dunuuinsilagiiv 12,427,942 12,264,770 12,427,942 12,264,770
Funuasnie 7,102,090 6,419,973 7,102,090 6,419,973
A mlsnnmadssnamsmuvdnadiaenans
s Usefuse - (8,448,623) - (8,448,623)
N o dql = 1 a v o o
— ﬂamumiaqmwnw“lummmmwmmuﬂ (1,625,318) (1,762,112) (1,625,318) (1,762,112)
% owatlselond (2,845,354) (5,042,069) (2,845,354) (5,042,069)
& o Juit 31 funay 153,456,231 138,396,871 153,456,231 138,396,871
m % 1 14
] mldenanuansuilumlsvisenanudmiuudasnomsiiaail
<C
U =) =) a o
% JUMIEUIIN JUMIEURNIZUIEN
< .4, 2558 .4, 2557 .4, 2558 .4, 2557
T
o 1IN VN 1IN STRL
7 dunuuimstlgiiv 12,427,942 12,264,770 12,427,942 12,264,770
<]>: ﬁunuﬂamﬁﬂ 7,102,090 6,419,973 7,102,090 6,419,973
% i nosmudisudssdnly
duveusEndmsul (1,625,318) (1,762,112) (1,625,318) (1,762,112)
s (uaesfludunisvesmldine
natseloytintinau) 17,904,714 16,922,631 17,904,714 16,922,631

AldeTuIn 17,904,714 11 (w.A. 2557 : 919U 16,922,631 1) ldsweglu “aldsrslunsuims”

Yoawuavan lumaszmnamsanundnadiamanilszousenlyiluaail

JUMINUIIN JUMSRUANIZYIEN

N.f. 2558 N.¢. 2557 N.f. 2558 N.¢. 2557
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Employee benefits obligation (Cont’d)

The movement in the employee benefit obligation over the year is as follows:

Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Baht Baht Baht Baht
At 1 January 138,396,871 134,964,932 138,396,871 134,964,932
Current service cost 12,427,942 12,264,770 12,427,942 12,264,770
Interest cost 7,102,090 6,419,973 7,102,090 6,419,973
Actuarial gains defined employee
benefit plans - (8,448,623) - (8,448,623)
Provident fund of the Company
portion for the year (1,625,318) (1,762,112) (1,625,318) (1,762,112)
Benefits paid (2,845,354) (5,042,069) (2,845,354) (5,042,069)
At 31 December 153,456,231 138,396,871 153,456,231 138,396,871
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:
Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Current Service cost 12,427,942 12,264,770 12,427,942 12,264,770
Interest cost 7,102,090 6,419,973 7,102,090 6,419,973
Less Provident fund of the Company
portion for the year (1,625,318) (1,762,112) (1,625,318) (1,762,112)
Total, included in staff costs 17,904,714 16,922,631 17,904,714 16,922,631
The total charge of Baht 17,904,714 (2014: Baht 16,922,631) was included in ‘administrative expenses’.
The principle actuarial assumptions used were as follows;
Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014

Discount rate 4.5% per annum

Inflation rate 3.0% per annum
Future salary increases
for management and staffs 7.0% per annum

Future salary increases for workers 6.1% per annum

4.5% per annum

3.0% per annum

7.0% per annum

6.1% per annum

Univanich
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3.0% per annum

7.0% per annum

6.1% per annum

4.5% per annum
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18 uuﬁauﬁuua:mumm&am?ju

JUMIRUTINNAZIUMSUDRINZUIEN
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17 Employee benefits obligation (Cont’d)

The principle actuarial assumptions used were as follows; (Cont’d)

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

Discount rate 0.5%  Decrease by 2.83%  Increase by 3.04%
Salary growth rate 0.5% Increase by 3.19%  Decrease by 3.01%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been

applied as when calculating the employee benefits obligation recognised within the statement of financial position.

18 Share capital and premium on share capital

Consolidated and Company

Ordinary Premium

Number of shares on share capital Total

shares Baht Baht Baht

At 1 January 2014 940,000,000 470,000,000 267,503,419 737,503,419
Issue of shares - - - -
At 31 December 2014 940,000,000 470,000,000 267,503,419 737,503,419
Issue of shares - - - -
At 31 December 2015 940,000,000 470,000,000 267,503,419 737,503,419

As at 31 December 2015, the total authorised and registered number of ordinary shares is 940,000,000 shares with a par
value of Baht 0.50 per share (2014: 940,000,000 shares with a par value of Baht 0.50 per share).
All shares are issued and fully paid-up.

19  Legal reserve

Under the Public Companies Act, the Company is required to set aside as statutory reserve at least 5 percent of its net
profit after accumulated deficit brought forward (if any) until the reserve is not less than 10 percent of the registered

capital. The Company has fully set the legal reserve. This reserve is not available for dividend distribution.
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20  Dividends paid

2015

At the Annual General Shareholders” Meeting held on 30 April 2015, the Shareholders approved a dividend payment for
the year ended 31 December 2014 of Baht 0.50 per share, totaling Baht 470,000,000. During 2014, the Company already
paid the interim dividends at Baht 0.20 per share, totaling Baht 188,000,000. Therefore, there are the remaining dividends
to be paid at Baht 0.30 per share, totaling Baht 282,000,000. The Company paid remaining dividend on 29 May 2015.

At the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 14 August 2015, the Board of Directors passed a resolution to approve an
interim dividend for the year ending 31 December 2015 of Baht 0.17 per share, totaling Baht 159,800,000. The Company
paid the interim dividend in September 2015.

2014

At the Annual General Shareholders” Meeting held on 25 April 2014, the Shareholders approved a dividend payment for
the year ended 31 December 2013 of Baht 0.55 per share, totaling Baht 517,000,000. During 2013, the Company already
paid the interim dividends at Baht 0.20 per share, totaling Baht 188,000,000. Therefore, there are the remaining dividends
to be paid at Baht 0.35 per share, totaling Baht 329,000,000. The Company paid remaining dividend on 23 May 2014.

At the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 14 August 2014, the Board of Directors passed a resolution to approve an
interim dividend for the year ending 31 December 2014 of Baht 0.20 per share, totaling Baht 188,000,000. The Company
paid the interim dividend in September 2014.

21  Non-controlling interests

Consolidated

2015 2014
Baht Baht
Opening balance 51,988,578 28,467,368
Capital contributions by non-controlling interest in subsidiary 29,540,980 28,672,126
Total comprehensive expense attributable to non-controlling interests (10,350,685) (5,150,916)
Closing balance 71,178,873 51,988,578
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22  Other income

Consolidated Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Sales of Carbon Credit - 93,931,515 - 93,931,515
Interest income 35,826,536 42,555,903 35,808,583 42,535,156
Others 14,064,299 10,443,825 17,817,860 11,330,624
Total other income 49,890,835 146,931,243 53,626,443 147,797,295

23 Expenses by nature

The following expenses classified by nature, have been charged in arriving at operating profit for the years.

Consolidated Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Raw materials and consumables used 2,774,964,143  4,245350,930  2,629,828,797  4,167,798,230
Changes in inventories of palm oil

and by products 15,240,563 (7,855,115) (27,803,185) 45,363,639

Staff costs 268,389,310 274,405,030 261,006,207 265,977,790

Amortisation (Note 11) 11,612,497 11,047,617 11,612,497 11,047,617

Depreciation (Note 12) 146,739,422 146,423,897 96,443,077 122,176,975

Transportation expenses 91,784,140 101,349,881 71,239,284 95,880,639

24 Income tax
The income tax is corporate income tax which calculated from the profit of Non-BOI activities.

The Group recognises income tax payable or receivable in future periods in respect of temporary differences arising
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 comprises the following:

Consolidated Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Current income tax expense 76,437,952 135,773,712 75,809,090 135,731,619
Deferred income tax

during the year (10,852,848) (6,371,223) 4,340,400 (655,321)

Total tax expense for the year 65,585,104 129,402,489 80,149,490 135,076,298
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24 Income tax (Cont’d)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax rate of

the home country of the company, as follows:

Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Profit before tax 425,966,732 760,093,774 474,619,403 779,011,781
Tax calculated 20% and 30%  20% and 30% 20% 20%
Current income tax on accounting profit 80,207,444 150,126,954 94,923,880 155,802,356
Tax effect of:
- Income not subject to tax (14,282,589) (34,616,558) (14,282,589) (34,616,558)
- Income subject to tax 408,829 537,216 411,029 537,216
- Expenses not deductible for tax
purpose (155,849) 1,903,711 (310,099) 1,902,118
- Adjustment in respect of prior year (592,731) 13,140,891 (592,731) 13,140,891
- Income tax relating to actuarial gains
on defined employee benefit plans - (1,689,725) - (1,689,725)
Tax charge 65,585,104 129,402,489 80,149,490 135,076,298

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the Group and the Company were 15.4% and 16.9%, respectively (2014

: 17.0% and 17.3%, respectively).

25 Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Profit attributable to owners
of the parent (Baht) 374,315,389 636,391,894 394,469,913 643,935,483
Weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during
the year (Shares) 940,000,000 940,000,000 940,000,000 940,000,000
Basic earnings per share for
the owners of the parent (Baht) 0.40 0.68 0.42 0.69

There are no outstanding potential dilutive ordinary shares, warrants, in issue for the years ended 31 December 2015

and 2014.
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26 Commitments

Commitments of the Company

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had commitments relating to purchases of machinery and equipment amounted
to Baht 19.16 million, and USD 0.66 million (2014: Baht 2.96 million, and USD 0.11 million).

Commitments of subsidiary

As at 31 December 2015, a subsidiary had commitments relating to the cost of construction and the purchase of machinery
of USD 0.62 million and Pesos 0.04 million (2014 : USD 0.16 million and Pesos 11.89 million).

27  Letters of guarantee

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had commitments under bank guarantees arising in the ordinary course of business
amounting to Baht 16.41 million (2014: Baht 9.51 million).

28 Related party transactions

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled
by, or are under common control with, the company, including holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
are related parties of the company. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting
power of the company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, including
directors and officers of the company and close members of the family of these individuals and companies associated
with these individuals also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not
merely the legal form.

Mr. Apirag Vanich and member of his family are major shareholders.
The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

a) Sales/ Purchases of goods and services

Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Baht Baht Baht Baht
Other income
- Subsidiaries - - 3,837,443 886,799
Purchases of goods
- the same shareholders
and directors 23,744,034 24,332,322 23,744,034 24,332,322
Purchases of services
- the same shareholders
and directors 892,574 6,831,801 892,574 6,831,801
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28 Related party transactions (Cont’d)

The policies for these related party transactions are as follows:

- Purchases of palm fruits are made in the normal course of business and at market prices.
- Purchase of services mainly comprise of port charges for export shipping which are made in the normal
course of business and at market price.

b)  Amount due from / amount due to related parties

Consolidated Company
2015 2014 2015 2014
Baht Baht Baht Baht

Amount due from
related parties
- Advance to related parties
Subsidiaries - - 6,104,508 1,945,375
Amount due to related parties
- Advance received
Other related parties
- the same shareholders
and directors - 30,975,500 - -

C) Long-term loans to a related party
The Company has entered into a long-term loan agreement with Univanich Agribusiness Corporation, a
subsidiary, for a maximum of USD 3 million, for investment in a joint venture business project to construct a
new palm oil mill factory. The repayment of principal will be due annually at the amount specified in the
loan agreement. The first repayment is due after 5 years, commencing from the first draw-down date.

This loan is uncollateralised and interest-free.

The movements in long-term loans to a subsidiary can be analysed as follow:

Company
2015 2014
Baht Baht

For the year ended 31 December
Opening balance 98,438,400 65,355,600
Increase - 32,980,000
Unrealised gain on exchange rate 9,331,500 102,800
Closing balance 107,769,900 98,438,400
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28 Related party transactions (Cont’d)

d) Prepayment of land rent

During the year 2014, the subsidiary entered into an operating lease agreement with a related party, which
has the same directors as the Group, relating to leases its land to construct a new palm oil mill factory and
agreed for a lease term of 50 years and for a consideration of Pesos 20 million as full rental payment for the
entire lease period which has been presented as prepayment of rental in the consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated

2015 2014

Baht Baht

Current portion of prepayment of land rent 291,236 291,237
Prepayment of land rend later than 1 year 13,878,407 14,173,526
14,169,643 14,464,763

e) Key management compensation

Key management compensation expenses included the directors’ remuneration which represents meeting
fees and remuneration paid to the Company’s Chairman, Directors and Audit Committee members as approved
by the shareholders of the Company in the Annual General Shareholders” Meeting and the key management
remuneration represents salary and other related benefits.

Consolidated Company

2015 2014 2015 2014

Baht Baht Baht Baht

Short-term employee benefits 47,176,490 45,740,354 41,202,143 45,740,354
Post-employment benefits 10,777,754 10,126,966 10,777,754 10,126,966

57,954,244 55,867,320 51,979,897 55,867,320
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29 Promotional privileges

Sales, classified as promoted and non-promoted activities, for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are

summarised as follows:

Consolidated

2015 2014

Promoted Non-promoted Promoted Non-promoted
activities activities Total activities activities Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Export sales - 452,346,618 452,346,618 266,384,641 2,936,705,935 3,203,090,576
Domestic sales 731,973,853  2,804,126,343 3,536,100,196 704,143,699 1,794,110,256 2,498,253,955
Total sales 731,973,853  3,256,472,961 3,988,446,814 970,528,340 4,730,816,191 5,701,344,531

Company

2015 2014

Promoted Non-promoted Promoted Non-promoted
activities activities Total activities activities Total
Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht Baht
Export sales - 452,346,618 452,346,618 266,384,641 2,936,705,935 3,203,090,576
Domestic sales 731,973,853 2,548,296,820 3,280,270,673 704,143,699 1,734,337,334 2,438,481,033
Total sales 731,973,853 3,000,643,438 3,732,617,291 970,528,340 4,671,043,269 5,641,571,609

On 16 October 1996, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the Board of Investment (BOI)
for the extraction of palm oil per promotional privilege certificate no. 1062/2540. The main privileges include the
exemption from import duties on machinery, exemption from corporate income tax for the promoted activities for the
period of 8 years from the date income is first derived (5 September 1997) which was expired on 4 September 2005,
and further exemption of corporate income tax at the rate of 50% of the prevailing normal tax rate for another 5 years
after the first exemption period which was expired on 4 September 2010.

On 29 September 1999, the Company was approved further promotional privileges from the BOI for the capacity
expansion of extraction of palm oil per promotional privilege certificate no. 1562/2542. The main privileges include
the exemption from import duties on machinery, exemption from corporate income tax for the promoted activities for
the period of § years from the date income is first derived (1 November 2000) which was expired on 31 October 2008,
and further exemption of corporate income tax at the rate of 50% of the prevailing normal tax rate for another 5 years
after the first exemption period which was expired on 31 October 2013.
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29 Promotional privileges (Cont’d)

On 7 September 2000, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the BOI for extraction of palm
oil per promotional privilege certificate no. 1090/2544. The main privileges include the exemption of import duties on
machinery, exemption of corporate income tax for the promoted activities for the period of

8 years from the date income is first derived (14 October 2004) which was expired on 13 October 2012, and further
exemption of corporate income tax at the rate of 50% of the prevailing normal tax rate for another 5 years after the first
exemption period.

On 15 December 2005, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the BOI for seed and seedling
production per promotional privilege certificate no. 1280(2)/2549. The main privileges include the exemption of import
duties on machinery, exemption of corporate income tax for the total promoted activities, but not exceeding 100% of
investment excluding land and working capital, for the period of 8 years from the date income is first derived (4 January
2007).

On 12 March 2007, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the BOI for electricity from Biogas
at Lamthap Branch and Aoluk Branch per promotional privilege certificate no. 1487(9)/2550 and

no. 1488(9)/2550, respectively. The main privileges include the exemption of import duties on machinery; exemption
of corporate income tax for the period of 8 years from the date income is first derived (20 June 2008).

On 12 May 2008, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the BOI for electricity from Biogas at
Plai Pharaya Branch per promotional privilege certificate no. 1947(9)/2551. The main privileges include the exemption
of import duties on machinery; exemption of corporate income tax for the period of

8 years from the date income is first derived. (18 August 2009).

On 2 March 2009, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the BOI for electricity from Biogas at
Lamthap Branch per promotional privilege certificate no. 1395(1)/2552. The main privileges include the exemption of
import duties on machinery; exemption of corporate income tax for the period of 8 years from the date income is first
derived (9 November 2009) and further exemption of corporate income tax at the rate of 50% of the prevailing normal
tax rate for another 5 years after the first exemption period.

On 2 March 2009, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the BOI for electricity from Biogas at
Plai Pharaya Branch per promotional privilege certificate no. 1584(1)/2552. The main privileges include the exemption
of import duties on machinery; exemption of corporate income tax for the period of

8 years from the date income is first derived (26 January 2010) and further exemption of corporate income tax at the
rate of 50% of the prevailing normal tax rate for another 5 years after the first exemption period.

On 28 December 2009, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the BOI for seed and seedling
production under promotional privilege certificate no. 1209(2)/2553. The main privileges include the exemption of
import duties on machinery, exemption of corporate income tax for the total promoted activities, but not exceeding
100% of investment excluding land and working capital, for the period of 8 years from the date income is first derived
(2 August 2010).
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29 Promotional privileges (Cont’d)

On 5 March 2012, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the BOI for crude palm oil and palm
kernel production under promotional privilege certificate no. 1564(2)/2555. The main privileges include the exemption
of import duties on machinery, exemption of corporate income tax for the total promoted activities, but not exceeding
100% of investment excluding land and working capital, for the period of 8 years from the date income is first derived
(3 March 2012).

On 27 May 2015, the Company received approval for promotion privileges from the BOI for crude palm oil and palm
kernel under promotional privilege certificate no. 1683(2)/2558. The main privileges include the exemption of import
duties on machinery, exemption of corporate income tax for the total promoted activities, but not exceeding 100% of
investment excluding land and working capital, for the period of 8 years from the date income is first derived. The
Company has not derived income from this promoted activity in this year.

The Company must comply with conditions and restrictions indicated in the promotional certificates.

30 Post statement of financial position event

At the Board of Directors of the Company’s meeting on 26 February 2016, it approved a proposed dividend payment for
the operating results of 2015 at Baht 0.40 per share, totalling Baht 376,000,000. During 2015, the Company already paid
the interim dividends at Baht 0.17 per share, totalling Baht 159,800,000. Therefore, there are the remaining dividends
to be paid at Baht 0.23 per share, totalling Baht 216,200,000. The proposed dividend payment will be further proposed
at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting for the year 2016 for the consideration and approval.
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Univanich

Univanich Palm Oil Public Company Limited

258 Aoluk-Laemsak Road
Box 8-9 Aoluk District Krabi 81110 Thailand
Telephone: +66 7563 4634 ext 112
Fax: +66 7568 1124
Website: www.univanich.com
Enquiries: info@univanich.com
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